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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the members of Aagam Capital Limited will be 
held as under:

Day:  Tuesday                               Venue: Pranjali School Auditorium,
Date: 29th September, 2015 155/157 August Kranti Marg
Time: 05.00 P.M Next to Stephens Church,

Kemps Corner,
Mumbai - 400036

To transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To consider and adopt:
1. The audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2015, the Reports of 

the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and Cash Flow Statement for year ended 31st March, 2015.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anil Kothari, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

To ratify the appointment of auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration and to pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that, pursuant to Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Rules made thereunder, pursuant to the recommendations of the audit committee of the Board of 
Directors, and pursuant to the resolution passed by the members at the AGM held on 27th, September, 2014, 
the appointment of M/s. Motilal Jain & Associates. - Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 106584W) 
as the auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the calendar year 
2020, be and is hereby ratified and that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the 
remuneration payable to them for the financial year ending March 31, 2016 as may be determined by the audit 
committee in consultation with the auditors, and that such remuneration may be paid on a progressive billing 
basis as may be agreed upon between the auditors and the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To appoint Mr. Shital Mutha as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
the Rules made there under read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, the appointment of Mr. Shital Mutha (Din: 03157346 ), who has submitted a declaration that he 
meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 as an 
Independent Director  of the Company,  by  the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at their  meeting held 
on 12/11/2014 and the Board at their meeting held on 12th November,2014  for a period of 5-years, from 12th 
November,2014 to 11th November, 2019 not retire by rotation , be and is hereby approved and accordingly 
ratified.
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5.   To appoint Mr.Shailendra Kumar patni as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
the Rules made there under read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, the appointment of Mr.Shailendra Kumar patni (Din: 05281098 ), who has submitted a declaration 
that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 as an 
Independent Director  of the Company,  by  the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at their  meeting held 
on 12/11/2014 and the Board at their meeting held on 12th November,2014  for a period of 5-years, from 12th 
November,2014 to 11th November, 2019 not retire by rotation , be and is hereby approved and accordingly 
ratified.

6.  To appoint Mrs. Sudarshana Mitra as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
the Rules made there under read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, the appointment of Mrs. Sudarshana Mitra (Din: 06746680 ), who was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 31st March,2015 in terms of Section 161(1) 
of the Act and whose term of office expires at the Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, 
and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company,  
for a period of 5-years, from 31st March,2015 to 30th March, 2020 not retire by rotation , be and is hereby 
approved and accordingly ratified. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

     Anil Kothari
         Director

Dated: 12th August, 2015
Registered Office:
Room No 2, 3rd floor, 5/7, 
Kothari House,OAK Lane, Fort 
Mumbai - 400 023
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NOTES:
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of 

himself / herself and such proxy need not be a member. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the 
company's registered office at Tarabai Hall, 97, Shiv Prasad Building, Marine Drive, Mumbai - 400002 not less 
than forty eight hours before the meeting.

1. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 23rd September, 
2015 to 29th September, 2015 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM.

2. In compliance with SEBI Circular No. D&CC/FITT/CIR-15/2002 dated December 27, 2002 read with circular 
No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-18/2003 dated February 12, 2003, mandating a Common Agency for Share Registry 
Work (Physical & Electronic), the company has already appointed M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd as the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents , having their office at E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Saki 
Naka, Andheri (East),Mumbai,Maharashtra,400072.

3. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address:

a. To their Depository Participants (Dos) in respect of their electronic share accounts, and

b. To the  share transfer agent M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited having office at E-2/3, Ansa Industrial 
Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Saki Naka, Andheri (East),Mumbai,Maharashtra,400072

4. Members may please bring the Admission Slip duly filled in and may hand over the same at the entrance to the 
Meeting Hall.

5. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning accounts and operations of the Company are 
requested to address their questions in writing to the Board of Directors of the Company at least 7 days before 
the date of the Meeting so that the information required may be made available at the Meeting.

6. Members are requested to bring the copy of the Annual Report sent to them. 

7. With a view to using natural resources responsibly, we request shareholders to update their email address, 
with their Depository Participants to enable the Company to send communications electronically. The Annual 
Report 2014-15 is being sent through electronic mode only to the members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s), unless any member has requested for a physical 
copy of the report. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the Annual 
Report 2014-15 are being sent by the permitted mode.

8. In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, substituted by Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment, 
Rules 2015, and Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company has provided a facility to the members to 
exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged by Central Depository 
Services Limited. The facility for voting, through ballot paper, will also be made available at the AGM and the 
members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to 
exercise their right at the AGM through ballot paper. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting 
prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The instructions for e-
voting are appended herein below.

9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in 
physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the Company.

10. As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nominations is available to INDIVIDUALS 
holding shares in the Company. The Nomination Form-2B prescribed by the Government can be obtained 
from the Share Transfer Agent or may be down loaded from the website of the Ministry of Company affairs.

11. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested to 
send a certified copy of the Board resolution to the Company, authorizing their representative to attend and 
vote on their behalf at the meeting.

12. Information required to be furnished under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

As required under the listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the particulars of Directors who are 
proposed to be appointed/reappointed are given below:
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Name of Dir tor ec Mr. A Knil othari Mr. Shi al uthat  M Mr. Sa lendr  i a 

Patni

Mrs. Sudarshana 

Mi rat

Date of Bir h t 03/08/1969 07/06/1978 28/02/1987 17/02/1953

Date of ment Appoint 28/05/2013 05/04/2013 05/12/2012 31/03/2015

Qual f cat oni i i

 

B.Com

 

Chartered 

Accoun nta t

 

Chartered 

Accoun nta t

 

Business

Expertise in Specific 

Functiona  l Area

 

Capital & R ale -

estat  Markete

 

Finance  &

T x tiona a .

 

Finance  &

Capital 

Market

 

Real-estate & 

Marketing.

Executive & Non- 

 

Executiv ec ore Dir t

 

Ex ti ectorecu ve Dir

 

Independent 

D ectorir

 

Independent 

D ectorir

 

Independent 

Director

Promoter roup G

 

NO

 

No

 

No

 

No

 

Independent D rec or i t

 

NO

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Yes

 

Chairman Me/ mber o f

Committees of the 

Boards ch of Whi he 

is a Direc or t
 

A.

 

Aag ma  

Capital Limited

 

1. Chairman of 

Risk 

Manag ment e

Committee 
2. Chairman of 

Share Transfer

Committee

 3. Member of 

Audit

Committee

 

 

A. ag italA am Cap  

Limited

 

 

1. Chairman of 

Nom tion andina

Rem eratio  un n

Committee
 2. Member of 

Risk Manag m te en  

Committee

 

 

3. Member of 

Share Transfer

Committee

 

4. Chairman of

Audit Co m em itte

 

A.

 

Aag ma  

Capital 

Limited
 

1. Member of 

Risk 

Manag ment e

Committee
 

A.

 

Aag ma  

Capital 

Limited

NIL

No of Sha he d res l

 

NIL

 

N LI

 

N LI

  

Term -

 

5 y rsea

 

( ofr m 12th

 

November

 

2014 to

11 th

 

November

 

2019)

 

5 y rsea

 

( o  fr m 12th

 

November

 

2014 o t 11 th

 

November

 

2019)

 

5 y rsea

( o  fr m 31st 

M 2015arch, to 

30th

 

M 2020arch, )

Othe ir D rectorship

 

1.

 

Design

 

channel 

Adv rivertising P ate 

Li i edm t

2. MPF Systems 

Li i edm t

1.

 

Risa 

Inte nati alr on  

Li i edm t

2. CHPL Indus rit es 

Li i edm t

1. F P M

Sy ems st

Li itedm

A.

 

A hoot wad

M g arketin

Private 

Li itedm

B.M oty  on pe

India Ltd.
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Mr. Shital Mutha Appointed as Independent Director on 05/04/2013 and Mr. Sailendra Patni Appointed 
as Independent Director on 05/12/2012 As per Listing Agreement and Companies Act, 2013 As per the 
new requirement the appointment is ratified and renewed

4. Member of

Nomination and

Remuneration

Committee

2. Member of

Audit 

Committee

3. Member of

Nomination 

and

Remuneration

Committee

4. Member of

share transfer

Committee

1. Member of

Audit 

Committee



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN 
RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS SET OUT IN THE NOTICE CONVENING THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING

ITEM NO. 4:

Mr. Shital Mutha was appointed as an Independent Director of the company. As per section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, he furnished a declaration that he meets with the criteria for independence to act as 
an Independent Director of the Company. 

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at their meeting held on 12th 
November,2014  Board at their meeting held on 12/11/2014 ratified his appointment in continuation as an 
independent director the  company for a period of 5-years from 12th November, 2014 up to 11th November, 
2019 and he is not liable to retire by rotation. He is only entitled for sitting fees.

The Company has received from Mr. Shital Mutha: (i) consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 
pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, and (ii) intimation in 
Form DIR -8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the extent 
applicable, to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr. Shital Mutha - the Independent Director whose appointment 
needs to be confirmed by way of ratification, fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Rules made thereunder and he is independent of the Management. A copy of the draft letter for the 
appointment of Mr. Shital Mutha as an Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions is available 
for inspection without any fee by any members of the Company at the Company's registered office during 11 
p.m. to 2 p.m. hours on working days up to the date of the AGM.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives, except Mr. Shital Mutha, to whom the resolution 
relates, is interested or concerned in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item no. 4 for the approval of the members.

ITEM NO. 5:

Mr.  Sailendra Patni was appointed as an Independent Director of the company. As per section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, he furnished a declaration that he meets with the criteria for independence to act as 
an Independent Director of the Company. 

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at their meeting held on 12th 
November,2014  Board at their meeting held on 12/11/2014 ratified his appointment in continuation as an 
independent director the  company for a period of 5-years from 12th November, 2014 upto 11th November, 
2019 and he is not liable to retire by rotation. He is only entitled for sitting fees.

The Company has received from Mr.  Sailendra Patni: (i) consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 
pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, and (ii) intimation in 
Form DIR -8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the extent 
applicable, to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013.
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In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr.  Sailendra Patni - the Independent Director who appointment 
needs to be confirmed by way of ratification, fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Rules made thereunder and he is independent of the Management. A copy of the draft letter for the 
appointment of Mr.  Sailendra Patni as an Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions is 
available for inspection without any fee by any members of the Company at the Company's registered office 
during 11 p.m. to 2 p.m. hours on working days up to the date of the AGM.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives, except Mr.  Sailendra Patni, to whom the resolution 
relates, is interested or concerned in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item no. 5 for the approval of the members.

ITEM NO. 6:

Mrs.  Sudarshana Mitra was appointed as an Additional Director of the company. As per section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, w.e.f 31st March, 2015. She furnished a declaration As per section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, that she meets with the criteria for independence to act as an Independent Director of 
the Company. 

The Company has received notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
from a member along with requisite deposit proposing her candidature for continuation in the office of the 
Board as an Independent Director.

The Company has received from Mrs.  Sudarshana Mitra: (i) consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-
2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, and (ii) intimation 
in Form DIR -8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the extent 
applicable, to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Mrs.  Sudarshana Mitra - the Independent Director who appointment 
needs to be confirmed by way of ratification, fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Rules made thereunder and she is independent of the Management. A copy of the draft letter for the 
appointment of Mrs.  Sudarshana Mitra as an Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions is 
available for inspection without any fee by any members of the Company at the Company's registered office 
during 11 p.m. to 2 p.m. hours on working days up to the date of the AGM.

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives, except Mrs.  Sudarshana Mitra, to whom the 
resolution relates, is interested or concerned in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item no. 6 for the approval of the members.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Place: Mumbai                  Anil Kothari
thDate: August 12 , 2015            Director

Registered Office:
'Room No 2, 3rd floor, 5/7,
Kothari House, OAK Lane Fort,
Mumbai – 400 023.
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Voting through Electronic Means: 

The Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility to all its members to enable them to cast their vote 
electronically in terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 and as per listing agreement (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force). Accordingly, a member may exercise his vote by electronic 
means and the Company may pass any resolution by electronic voting system in accordance with the below 
provisions, through the e- voting services provided by CDSL.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on 26th September, 2015 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 28th September, 2015 at 
5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 22nd September, 2015 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website .

(iv) Click on Shareholders.

(v) Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to  and voted on an 
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

www.evotingindia.com

www.evotingindia.com

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Members who have not up to dated of their PAN  with the 
Company/Depository  Participant are requested to use the first two 
letters of their name and the last 8 digits of the demat account/folio 
number in the PAN field.

• In case the Folio number is less then  8 digit enter the applicable 
number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the 
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Rajesh Kumar with 
folio number 100 then enter RA00000100 in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format

Dividend 
Bank 
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the 
company records for the said demat account or folio.

• Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If 
the details are not recorded with the depository or company please 
enter the number of shares held by you as on the cut off date in the 
Dividend Bank details field.
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(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that 
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company 
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant “Aagam Capital Limited” on which you choose to vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will 
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 
to log on to  and register themselves as Corporates.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 
to .

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at , under help section or 
write an email to .

(xxi) The Company has appointed M/s. Amarendra Mohapatra, Practicing Company Secretaries (C.P. No. 
14901 and ACS No.  26257) as the Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in fair and 
transparent manner.

(xxii) A copy of this notice has been placed on the website of the Company and the website of CDSL.

(xxiii) In case of Members who are entitled to vote but have not electronic means, the Chairman of the 
Company will order a poll on his own motion or on demand at the Meeting in terms of Section 109 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for all businesses specified in the accompanying Notice.

www.evotingindia.com

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

www.evotingindia.com
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Aagam Capital Limited constantly strives towards improving, systems and process that promote the values 
of transparency, professionalism, accountability and compliance.

The Company remains firmly committed to this central theme and endeavors to improve these values on an 
ongoing basis.

Recent amendments of Companies Act, 2013 are effective from October 1, 2014. The amended rules 
require Companies to get shareholders' approval for related party transactions, establish whistleblower 
mechanisms, elaborate disclosures on pay packages and have at least one Woman Director on their boards. 
The amended norms are aligned with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and is aimed to encourage 
Companies to 'adopt best practices on corporate governance'.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
At present the Board of the Company is adequately equipped and well represented by Women Directors and 
Independent Directors of high repute. The Chairman of the Audit Committee headed by Independent 
Director(s). In line with the SEBI notification CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2/2014 read with section 149 (1) and 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 necessary are steps taken by the Company to meet with the 
Statutory requirements. 

COMPOSITION OF BOARD AS ON 31st MARCH, 2015

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEAR 2014-2015
Annual General Meeting was held on 27th September, 2014
Board Meetings were conducted 4 (Four) times during the year as follows:

 
SR.
NO  

NA E OF DIRE ORM CT  CA ORTEG Y  DESIGNA ONTI  

1
 

Ani  Kotharil
 

Ex ti ectorecu ve Dir
 

C irmanha
 2

 
Januram H uram ind  
Choudhary

 

Ex ti ectorecu ve Dir
 

D ectorir
 

3

 

Shailendra k a  pa nium r t

 

Independent D ecto ir r

 

D ectorir

 4

 

Shi al Mt  utha

 

Independent Directo r

 

D ectorir

 5

 

Sudarshana M rait

 

Independent Directo r

 

D ectorir

 

Sr. 
No  

Date  B rd Streng hoa t  No. of  D rec ors P. i t resent  

1
 

26.05.2014
 

4
 

4
 

2
 

12.08.2014
 

4
 

4
 

3

 

12.11.2014

 

4

 

4

 
4

 

12.02.2015

 

4

 

4
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The record of Attendance at Board Meetings and Membership of Board of Directors as on 31st 
March, 2015

NOTES:
1. The Board evaluated each of Independent Directors participation in the Board and their vast experience, 

expertise and contribution to the Board and Company. Each and every related party transaction are very 
well scrutinized and checks were made so that the Company is a beneficiary.

2. During the period the Company received notices/declarations from the Independent Directors as per 
Schedule IV and section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

3. The Company recommended for the consideration of the members about the appointment of all the 
independent directors for a period of 5years effective from 12TH November, 2014. Details of Directors 
are separately mentioned in the Explanatory Statement to the Notice.

4. Mrs. Sudarshana Mitra is women directors to the Board w.e.f 31st March,2015
5. The Board has also to set up a committee to meet with the women's grievances in line with “Vishakha 

Guidelines”
6. The Chairman also to set up a Whistleblower mechanism in line with the policy of the company and as per 

SEBI notification CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2/2014 read with section 177 of Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Brief description and terms of reference
To oversee the Company's Financial Report process, internal control systems, reviewing the accounting 
policies and practices, and financial statements audited by the statutory auditors. The audit committee is 
constituted pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Composition of Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2015

Company has conducted 4(Four) Audit Committee Meeting during the year.

Sr  .
No  

Name of  Direc ort  No of 
Board 
M tiee ngs 
att deden  
duri heng t  
Y rea

 

Attendance a t
the MAG  

N  o. of
M p embershi
of 
C eesommitt

 

N  o. of
C irmanshiha ps 
o Co mit eesf m t

 

1

 

Ani  Kotharil

 

4

 

P

 

2

 

2

 
2

 

Januram Hinduram  
Choudhary

 

4

 

P

 

3

 

NIL

 3

 

Shailendra k a  um r
patni

 

4

 

P

 

4

 

NIL

 4

 

Shi al Mt  utha

 

4

 

P

 

2

 

2

 

5

 

Sudarshana M rait

         

NIL

            

NIL

 

1

 

NIL
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Sr. o.N  Name of Me mbers  D ignes ation  
1.

 
M  r. Shi al Mt  utha

 
Chairman

 
2.

 
M  r. Shai dra  pa nilen kumar t

 
Independent  D ec or ir t

 3.

 
M  r. Ani Kotharil 

 
Ex ti ectorecu ve Dir

 4. 

 

Mrs. Sudarshana M rait

 

Independent D ecto ir r

 

April – June  July – September  October – December   January – March   

    
26.05.2014 12.08.2014 12.11.2014 12.02.2015
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Meetings and Attendance of the Audit Committee during the Year

Powers of the Audit Committee

1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
2. To seek information from any employee.
3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.
4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Role of the Audit Committee 

1. Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to  the board for 
approval;  

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

Sr No.  Name o  Mf ember  No. of M ti Hee ng eld 
D g heurin  t  Year  

No. of M tiee ng 
Attended  

1
 

M  r. Shi al Mt  utha
 

4
 

4
 2

 
M  r. Shailendra  kumar
patni

 

4

 
4

 
3

 

M  r. Ani  Kotharil

 

4

 

4
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19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Brief description and terms of reference
The objective of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to assess the remuneration payable to our 
Managing Director/Whole Time Directors; sitting fee payable to our Non-Executive Directors; remuneration 
policy covering policies on remuneration payable to our senior executives.

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committees on 31st March, 2015

Company has conducted Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings on 13/11/2014. 

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE:

The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

• determining/recommending the criteria for appointment of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors to the Board; 

• determining/recommending the criteria for qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
Directors; 

• identifying candidates who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 
Management and recommending to the Board their appointment and removal; 

• reviewing and determining all elements of remuneration package of all the Executive Directors, i.e. 
salary, benefits, bonus, stock options, pension, etc.;

• reviewing and determining fixed component and performance linked incentives for Directors along with 
the performance criteria;

• determining policy on service contracts, notice period, severance fees for Directors and Senior 
Management;

• evaluating performance of each Director and performance of the Board as a whole;

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Brief description and terms of reference
The Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. Further, your Company has 
established procedures to periodically place before the Board, the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures being followed by the Company and steps taken by it to mitigate these risks. The risk 
management measures and controls are presented to the Members of the Audit Committee and the Board of 
the Company.

Composition of Risk Management Committee as on 31st March, 2015

Sr. o.N  Name of Me mbers  D ignes ation  

1
 

M  r. Shi al Mt  utha
 

C i manha r
 2

 
M  r. Shai dra  pa nilen kumar t

 
Independent  D ec or ir t

 3

 

M  r. Ani Kotharil 

 

Ex ti ectorecu ve Dir

 4

 

M  r. Januram H indura  udharym Cho

 

Ex ti ectorecu ve Dir
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Composition of Risk Management Committee as on 31st March, 2015

SHARES TRANSFER COMMITTEE 

Brief description and Terms of Reference

The Board has delegated the powers to a committee to approve transfer/transmission of shares and attend 
to all other matters related thereto.

Composition of Shares Transfer Committee as on 31st March, 2015

Company has conducted Shares Transfer Committee meetings on

Name of the Compliance Officer – Mr. Anil Kothari
Email Id: 

MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND RESPONSIBILITY

FORMAL EVALUATION OF OFFICERS

The Remuneration Committee of the Board approves the compensation and benefits for all executive Board 
members. Another committee, headed by the Executive Directors, reviews, evaluates and decides the 
annual compensation of our officers from the level of executive upwards.

aagamcltd@gmail.com

Sr. o.N  Name of Me mbers  D ignes ation  

1.

  
M  r. Ani Kotharil 

  
Chairm na

 2.

  

M  r. Shai dra  pa nilen kumar t

 

Director

 3.

  

M  r. Shi al Mt  utha

 

Director

 
  

4.

 

M  r. Januram H ura   ind m Choudhary

 

Director

 

Sr. o.N  Name of Me mbers  D ignaties on  

1
 

M  r. Ani Kotharil 
  

Cha m nir a
 2

 
M  r. Shai dra  len kumar
patni

 

Director

 
3

 

M  r. Shi al Mt  utha

 

Director

 
4

 

M  r. Januram H ura   ind m
Choudhary

 

Director

 
 

April – June   July – September  October – 
December

 
 

January – March

03/04/2014
 

15/07/2014
  

 
08/ 5/ 010 2 4

 
29/07/2014

  22/05/2014

 

12/08/2014

  12/06/2014

 

25/08/2014

  
23/06/2014 10/09/2014

27/09/2014

25/10/2014

25/11/2014

19/12/2014

06/02/2015

09/03/2015

14/03/2015

18/03/2015
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DISCLOSURES

1. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of 
material nature, with its Promoters, Directors, their relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large: None of the transaction with any of the related parties was in conflict 
with the interested of the Company. 

2. ACCOUTING TREATMENT:
The account treatments are in accordance with the applicable accounting standard. The company has 
not altered or adapted any new standard.

3. COMPLIANCE BY THE COMPANY:
Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and stricture imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets during the last 
three years: 

The Company has complied with the requirement of regulatory authorities on matters related to capital 
market and no penalties/ stricture have been imposed against the Company during the last three years.

4. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:
Pursuant to the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) regulations, 1992 as amended, the 
Company has adopted a “Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading. Mr. Anil Kothari  is the 
Compliance Officer for this purpose.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Details of Annual general Meetings

Particu arsl  F.Y.2013 -2014  F.Y.2012 -2013  F.Y.2011 -2012

Date  27.09.2014  28.09.2013  28.09.2012

T mei
 

05.00 p.m.
 

05.00 p.m.
 
11.00 a m. .

V ueen
 

Pranj Schoolali  

Audi orium, 155/15t  7 

Aug  Kraust n i M  t  arg,

N  to St hens ext ep

C rch, Kempshu   

C  Morner, umbai -

 
400036

 

R m N 2oo o.2, nd

 
Fl roo , 

Beaumoon 

Chambers  N M, .  

Road,Fort, Mumbai –

 
400001

 

T In erna ionalhe t t  

H se, ou 4th Fl r  Newoo ,  

M e Lines cross arin

R 1, 16,d. No.   

M arshi Karv , ah e Rd

C rchgate  Mhu , umbai 

– 400020

Reg ced. Offi

 

'R m N 2, 3rdoo o   floor, 

5/7, Kotha i H se, r  ou  

OAK Lane For , t  

Mumbai –

 

400 023

 

'R m N 2, 3rdoo o   floor, 

5/7, Kotha i H se,r  ou  

OAK Lane For , t  

Mumbai –

 

400 023.

 

T In erna ionalhe t t  

H se, ou 4th Fl r  Newoo ,  

M e Lines cross arin

R 1, 16,d. No.   

M arshi Karvah e Rd, 

C rchgate  Mhu , umbai 

– 400020
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Hal  rly Fi nci R ort f Yea  na al ep  The Financial results of the Company are 
published in leading newspapers, and a 
separate half yearly report is not sent to 
each shareholder.

Quar erly Fi nci R lt  na al esu ts
 

T r erly nci re s o  he he qua t  fina al sult f t

Company are publ d i dan th  ishe n accor ce wi

the e emen  o  he Li i  ee entr quir t f t  st ng Agr m  

o he S oc Ex n re t  sha es f t t k cha ges whe he r

o he co pany are l ef t m   ist d.

 
Newspapers in which results are normally

publ shedi

 

1.

 

Free Pre Jouss rnal Eng ( lish)

 
2.

 

N k i (M hiavsha t  arat )

 
W siteeb 

 

www agam p.a ca .com

 
Administrativ ere Oe/Regist d  ffice

 

'R m  d r  7, o hari ouseoo No 2, 3r floo , 5/ K t H , 

OAK Lane For , M 400 023 t  umbai  - 

  

Whether Management Discussions and 
Analysis report is a part of Annual Report 
or not

 

 

 

Yes

 GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

1. 22nd Annual General Meeting

Date : 29th September, 2015
Time : 11:00 a.m.
Venue : Pranjali School Auditorium, 

155/157 August Kranti Marg, 
Next to Stephens Church
Kemps Corner, 
Mumbai – 400036

2. Date of Book Closure: 26th September, 2015 to 29th September, 2015 (both days inclusive)

3. Tentative Calendar for financial year 31st March , 2016
The tentative dates of meeting of Board of Directors for consideration of quarterly financial results for the 
financial year ending 31st March, 2015 are as follows:

4. Registered Office

'Room No 2, 3rd floor, 5/7, Kothari House, OAK Lane Fort, Mumbai – 400 023

5. Listing of Shares on Stock Exchanges

The Company shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) The requisite listing fees have been paid in full to 
all the Stock Exchanges.

 
Fi nci ort  uar er ndedna al Rep ing for the Q t E  
30th

 
June 2015

 

B mi t, 2015y d of Augus  

Fi nci R ort    Qua te  andna al ep ing for the r r  
Hal  y rly Ended 30f ea  th

 
Septembe  r 2015

 

B mi N r, 2 5y d of ovembe 01
 

Fi nci ort  uar er ndedna al Rep ing for the Q t E  
31st

 

December 2015 

 

B mi Februa  2016y d of ry,

 Fi nci R ort    Qua te  Endedna al ep ing for the r r  
31st

 

M 2016arch 

 

By end

 

of ay  2016M ,
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6. A) Stock Codes

BSE : 531866
ID : AAGAMCAP
ISIN : INE817D01013

B) Corporate Identity Number : L65990MH1991PLC064631

7. Market Price Data: BSE & NSE

A) The Monthly high/low quotation of equity shares traded on the BSE Limited, Mumbai are as 
follows:

(Source –www.bseindia.com)

B) Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2015

* According to categories of shareholders as on 31st March 2015

Month  Open Pr cei  H gh Pr cei  i  Lo Pr cew i  C ose Pr cel i N  Sho.of ares

Apr-14

 
160.00

 
181.75

 
139.30

 
159.90 447689

May-14

 

159.80

 

160.00

 

109.10

 

128.85 481530

Jun-14

 

131.90

 

189.00

 

117.05

 

183.50 348603

Jul-14

 

176.00

 

183.55

 

161.00

 

170.80 441681

Aug-14

 

178.95

 

192.00

 

120.55

 

124.40 380060

Sep-14

 

119.00

 

129.50

 

99.00

 

101.05 282528

Oct-14

 

106.10

 

107.00

 

86.55

 

102.80 51430

Nov-14

 

107.90

 

129.95

 

89.00

 

102.85 87485

Dec-14 114.00 120.00 62.10 74.90 248107

Jan-15 81.95 81.95 58.65 62.10 39937

Feb-15 57.30 69.50 47.15 62.00 21542

Mar-15 50.00 80.65 45.00 47.55 49588
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 Slab  of

shareholdings No.

of Equi y Sharest  

 

No. of 

Shareholders

 

% To total No.

of shareho dersl

N shareso. of  

held

% To total

Shares 

held

1-5000

 

493

 

64.69

 

46721 0.93

5001-10000

 

55

 

7.21

 

42831 0.85

10001-20000

 

56

 

7.34

 

87152 1.74

20001-30000

 

19

 

2.49

 

48969 0.97

30001-40000 17 2.23 60779 1.21

40001-50000 21 2.75 101448 2.02

50001-100000 50 6.56 386243 7.75

100001 & bovA e 51 6.69 4225857 84.51

TOTAL 762 5000000 100100

 
C)  According to categories of shareholders as on 31st

 March 2015

 
 
 

Categories

 
Shares Held % of Total

a

 

Promoters

 

00 00
b

 

Banks, Financial Institution, Insurance 
Companies,(Central/ State Govt. Institution/ 
Non-Govt. Institution),Individuals.

 

00 00

c

 

Mutual Funds/UTI

 

d

 

FIIs

 

e

 

Private Corporate Bodies

 

2913765 58.28
f Indian Public 2080196 41.61
g NRIs / OCBs 2119 0.04
h Clearing Members 3920 0.07
i Trusts

TOTAL 5000000 100
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8. Registrar and Transfer Agent:
SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM
M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited continues to be the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the 
Company. All the work related to share Registry in terms of both Physical and Electronic segment has 
been allotted to M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited., in view of the directive issued by SEBI in this 
regard i.e. for handling both Physical as well as Electronic transfer at a single point.

Shareholders are therefore requested to send shares for Physical transfer to M/s. Bigshare Services 
Private Limited instead of sending to the Company.As the Company's Shares are compulsorily to be 
traded in dematerialized form. Members holding shares in Physical Form are requested to send the 
share certificate to their Depository Participants to enable Registrar and Transfer Agent to take steps for 
dematerialization at the following:

The address of Registrar and Transfer agents is:
M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited 
E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, 
Saki Vihar Road, Saki Naka,
Andheri – (East), 
Mumbai – 400 072

9. Dematerialisation of Shares
As on 31st March, 2015: 4992198, representing 99.84 % of the total issued capital, were held in 
dematerialized form and 7802 shares, representing 0.16 %of the total issued capital is held in Physical 
form.

10. Outstanding ADRs / GDRs
The company has not issued any ADRs / GDRs

11. Address for Correspondence: 
'Room No 2, 3rd floor, 5/7, Kothari House, OAK Lane Fort, Mumbai – 400 023
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DIRECTOR REPORT

To The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 23rdAnnual Report of the Company together with the Audited 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

STANDALONE SUMMARISED FINANCIAL RESULTS:

THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW:
Your Company has successfully completed 24 years of operation. Your Company's key businesses currently 
mainly Non-Banking Operation. That have reported an encouraging performance for the year ended 
31stMarch 2015. 

COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE:
In the Current year under review, the Company decided to invest and utilize more funds into the field of 
Banking Products. The Company booked a profit of Rs. 11, 62,555 in the Current year operation.

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, prepared 
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 on Consolidated 
Financial Statements is provided in the Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Clause 49 of 
the Listing with Stock Exchange in India, is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual 
Report.

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY: FUTURE OUTLOOK: 
The Company's major focus is to engage in the development, and distribution of commercial and banking 
products and materials in all formats.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year.

DIVIDEND: 
Your Directors do not recommend any Dividend

         (Rs.A t In Rupeesmoun )

Part culi ars  2014-15  2013-14

T al Inco eot  m
 

17,22,074
 

14,97,216

T al Ex nditureot  pe
 

6,46,742
 

9,34,516

Pro t ore ti al d rao di ry emsfi bef  excep on  an ext r na  it  

and tax 

 

10,75,332

 
5,62,700

Less:

 

Ex tional i emcep  t

 

20,000

 

00

Pro t be e ex rao difi  for t r nar i ems d taxy t an    

 

10,55,332

 

5,62,700

Tax

 

(Ex ov  Last )cess Pr ision Year

 

1,07,223

 

1,07,223

Net ro / Loss  te  P fit ( ) Af r Tax 11,62,555 4,55,477
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FIXED DEPOSIT:
As on 31st March, 2015, the Company held no deposit in any form from anyone. There was no deposit held 
by the company as on 31st March, 2015, which was overdue or unclaimed by the depositors. For the present, 
the Board of Directors has resolved that not to accept any deposit from public.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY:
During the year under review there were no material change and commitment affecting the financial position 
of the Company. 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:
The Board met 4 times during the financial year, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report that forms part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the 
period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under and the 
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Anil Kothari, Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offered himself for re-appointment. 

The Companies Act, 2013 provides the appointment of Independent Directors. Pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 149 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that every listed company shall have at least one-third 
of the total number of directors as independent directors. The Board of the Company is in compliance with 
aforesaid section and had taken necessary steps for Compliance. 

As per the Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that independent director shall hold office 
for a term of up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company; and shall be eligible for re-
appointment on passing a special resolution by the shareholders of the Company.

Further, according to the Section 149 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013, no independent director shall be 
eligible for appointment for more than two consecutive terms of five years. Sub-section (13) states that the 
provisions of retirement by rotation as defined in Sub-sections (6) and (7) of Section 152 of the Act shall not 
apply to such independent directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 12/11/2014 has confirmed and ratified the appointment of 
Mr. Shital Mutha and Mr. Shailendra kumar patni as Independent Director of the company for a period of five 
years starting from 12th November, 2014 up to 11th November, 2019 and who are not liable to retire by 
rotation. On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board seeks the 
ratification of the same from the members of the Company. 

Further, at the time of appointment of an independent director, the Company issues a formal letter of 
appointment outlining his/her role, functions, duties and responsibilities as a director. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION:
The Company has received necessary declaration from each independent director under Section 149(7) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The Independent Directors under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 declared that:

1. They are not  a promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company;

2. They are not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company.

3. The independent Directors have /had  no pecuniary relationship with company, its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company , or their  promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial 
years or during the current financial year;

Aagam Capital Limited (Formerly known as Subhkam Capital Limited) Annual Report 2015



20

4. None of the relatives of the Independent Director has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with 
the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to 
two per cent. or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as 
may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during 
the current financial year;

5. Independent Director, neither himself nor any of his relatives–

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the 
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years 
immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed;

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years immediately 
preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed, of–

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company; or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent. or more of the gross turnover of such 
firm;

(iii) Holds together with his relatives two percent. or more of the total voting power of the company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any nonprofit organization that receives 
twenty-five percent. or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its 
holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two percent. or more of the total voting power 
of the company; 

6. Independent Director possesses such qualifications as may be directed by the Board. 
The Company & the Independent Directors shall abide by the provisions specified in Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD EVALUATION:
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement mandates that the Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation 
framework. The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board 
of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 states that the performance evaluation of independent directors should be done by the entire 
Board of Directors, excluded the director being evaluated.

The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and 
framework adopted by the Board. The Board approved the evaluation results as collated by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee.

PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES:
During the year under review, the performance of the Board & Committees and Individual Director(s) based 
on the below parameters was satisfactory:

(i) Most of the Directors attended the Board meeting;
(ii) The remunerations paid to executive Directors are strictly as per the company and industry policy. 
(iii) The Independent Directors only received sitting fees.
(iv) The Independent Directors contributed a lot in the Board and committee deliberation and business and 

operation of the company and subsidiaries based on their experience and knowledge and Independent 
views.

(v) The Credit Policy, Loan Policy and compliances were reviewed periodically;
(vi) Risk Management Policy was implemented at all critical levels and monitored by the Internal Audit team 

who places report with the Board and Audit committee.
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MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
Pursuant of the provision of Section 149 (8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV and Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement, the Independent Directors of the Company held their meeting on 12th February, 
2015, reviewed the performance of non- independent directors and the Board as a whole including the 
Chairperson of the Company, views expressed by the executive directors and non-executive directors at 
various level, and quantified the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company, 
management and the Board and expressed satisfaction. 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:
The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and independent directors to maintain the 
independence of the Board and separate its functions of governance and management. As on 31st March, 
2015, the Board consists of 5 members. Out of which Three is the Independent Directors, two Executive 
directors.

The policy of the Company on directors' appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under Sub section 
(3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board and are stated in this Board report. We 
affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the nomination and 
remuneration policy of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
Currently, the Board has Four Committees: 1) Audit Committee, 2) Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, 3) Risk Management Committee, 4) Shares Transfer /Investor Grievances Committee.

A detailed note on the Board and its Committees is provided under the Corporate Governance Report that 
forms part of this Annual Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP 
COMMITTEE
Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has set up a Nomination and 
Remuneration and Stakeholders Relationship Committee under the Chairmanship of the Independent 
Director Mr. Shital Mutha, and Mr. Sailendra Kumar Patni.

The Gist of the Policy of the said committee:
For Appointment of Independent Director (ID):
a. Any person who is between the age of 25 years and below 75 years eligible to become Independent 

Director(ID);
b. He has to fulfill the requirements as per section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 49 of 

the Listing Agreement;
c. Adhere to the code of conduct as per Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013;
d. Strictly adhere to the Insider Trading Regulation of the SEBI and Insider  Trading policy of the Company; 
e. Independent Director should have adequate knowledge and reasonably able to contribute to the growth 

of the Company and stakeholders;
f. Independent Director should be able to devote time for the Board and other meetings of the company;
g.  Entitled for sitting fees and Reasonable conveyance to attend the meetings; and
h. Able to review the policy, participate in the meeting with all the stakeholders of the company at the Annual 

General Meeting.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The company has developed Risk Management Policy mainly covering the following areas of concerns
1. License and policy of government of the India in connection with Banking and banking regulation.
2. Adequate policy in connection with foreign exchange, management fluctuations thereof duly placed 

before the Board.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention  and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit Manual. To 
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system 
in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations 
of the Company.

Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective 
areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along with 
corrective actions thereon are presented to Board.

M/s. Dhawan & Co.. – Chartered Accountants are the internal Auditor of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to the Section 134(3)(c) and Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of 
the Company hereby confirm:

(I) That in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2015, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the 
year under review;

(iii) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) That the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31stMarch 2015 on a 'going 
concern' basis.

(v) The internal financial controls laid and have been followed by the company and that such controls are 
adequate and are operating effectively. Such controls means controls and policies and procedures 
adopted and adherence by the company for orderly and efficient conduct of the business for 
safeguarding assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors and maintenance of accounting 
records and timely preparation of financial statements and review its efficiency. 

(vi) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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AUDITORS:

STATUTORY AUDITORS
At the Annual General Meeting held on 27th September, 2014, M/s. Motilal & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the 
29th Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2020. 

In terms of the first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the auditors shall 
be placed for ratification at every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the appointment of M/s. Motilal & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Company, is placed for ratification by the 
shareholders. 

In this regard, the Company has received a certificate from the auditors to the effect that if they are re-
appointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
M/s. P. D. Pandya & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice was appointed to conduct the secretarial 
audit of the Company for the financial year 2014-15, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rules thereunder. 

The Board has appointed M/s. Amarendra Mohapatra & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, as 
secretarial auditor of the Company for the financial year 2015-16.

AUDITORS REPORT
The Auditors have not made any qualification to the financial statement. Their reports on relevant notes on 
accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for any comments under section 134 of the companies Act, 
2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE COURTS/REGULATORS:
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and Company's operations in future. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE: 
As required by the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 the 
relevant information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo are as follows:

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 
The Company continues its policy of encouraging energy conservation measures. The regular review of 
energy consumption and the systems installed to control utilization of energy is undertaken. 

B) RESEARCH &DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES: 
There is a dedicated team being formed which conduct market research will prepare the inputs which will be 
used to create the R&D Pipeline. 
 
Continuous efforts are being made to improve reliability and quality through in houseR&D efforts and 
presently the R&D is headed by Mr. Anil Kothari.

C) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
The Company is equipped with technologies from world's leaders. 

D) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO: 
                                                                                     (Rs. in Lacs)

2014-2015 2013-2014
a. Foreign Exchange Earned  00 00
b. Foreign Exchange Used 00 00
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Non C ompliance of KMP
 

The Company has appointed CFO as KMP and is in the process of filing the 
necessary forms to the Concerned Authorities. Further the Company is in the 
process of appointing Whole Time Director/Managing Director and 
Company Secretary.
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:
The Company has a vigil mechanism named Fraud and Risk Management Policy (FRM) to deal with 
instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any, in staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and 
Passion and in line with our vision of being one of the most respected companies in India, the Company is 
committed to the high standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholder responsibility.

A high level Committee has been constituted which looks into the complaints raised. The Committee reports 
to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The FRM Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also that no 
discrimination will be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised concern.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONTRACTS: 
Pursuant to the Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, the particulars of contract or arrangement entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in Section 188(1) are available in the Note no 1(5) of the, Standalone financial statements section 
of the Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:
Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the 
notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNS
Pursuant to the Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the details forming part of the extract of the 
Annual Return is Form MGT-9 is Annexure-V.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT: 
We take this opportunity to thank employees at all levels for their dedicated service and contribution made 
towards the growth of the company. The relationship with the workers has continued to be cordial.

To ensure good human resources management at the company, we focus on all aspects of the employee 
lifecycle. This provides a holistic experience for the employee as well. During their tenure at the Company, 
employees are motivated through various skill-development, engagement and volunteering programs. 

As per provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is Annexure-VI to this Board's 
report.

In terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, no employee(s) drawing 
remuneration in excess of limits set out in said rules forms part of the annual report.

Considering the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being sent 
to the members of the Company and others entitled thereto. The said information is available for inspection 
at the registered office of the Company during business hours from 11 a.m to 2 p.m on working days of the 
Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a 
copy thereof, may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
A Report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from M/s. Motilal Jain & Associates Chartered 
Accountants regarding compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange forms part of this Report and Annexure-VII to this Board's 
Report.
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INSURANCE OF ASSETS
All the fixed assets, finished goods, semi-finished goods, raw material, packing material and goods of the 
company lying at different locations have been insured against fire and allied risks.

BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Directors are thankful to their bankers for their continued support to the company.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
Your Directors convey their sincere thanks to the Government, Banks, Shareholders and customers for their 
continued support extended to the company at all times.

The Directors further express their deep appreciation to all employees for commendable teamwork, high 
degree of professionalism and enthusiastic effort displayed by them during the year.

On behalf of the Board of Directors.
Place: Mumbai
Dated: 29th May, 2015

Anil Kothari Januram Hinduram Choudhary
                           Director    Director
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Auditor Certificate on Corporate Governance -March 31, 2015 

To,
The Board of Directors of
Aagam Capital Limited.

We have reviewed the implementation of Corporate Governance procedures by Aagam Capital Limited 
during the year ended March, 2015, with the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company, 
furnished to us for our review and the report on Corporate Governance as approved by the Board of 
Directors.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

On the basis of our review and according to the information and explanations given to us, the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the listing agreements with the Stock Exchanges have 
been complied with in all material respects by the company & that no investors grievance is pending for a 
period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by the Investors 
Grievance, Relations & Share Transfer Committee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Development  

There has been decline in the capital market indices and the market turnover. The reasons for downward 
market movement are: 

Subdued FII inflows into the country led to a decline in Indian markets and contributed to the sharp 
depreciation of the rupee in the forex market, though much of the depreciation was troubled due to European 
and inflation-hit emerging market economies. 

Moderation in the growth rate of the economy has also affected market sentiments. This moderation in 
growth is on account of several factors, including the uncertainty in the global environment and lag effect of 
monetary policy tightening. 

Monetary tightening in India has led to some correction in stock markets, just as it happened in other 
emerging market economies as their central banks tightened their grips. 

Qualified foreign investors (QFIs) were allowed to directly invest in Indian equity markets in January 2012. 
This was done to widen the class of investors, attract more foreign funds, reduce market volatility, and 
deepen the Indian capital market. 

Segment wise or Product wise performance

At present the Company is carrying out its operations in only one segment namely, Finance & Investment.

Opportunities & Threats

Business conditions continue to be challenging and Business growth will depend on the recovery of the 
global economies. The growth of the Company is subject to opportunities and threats as are applicable to the 
industry from time to time. 

Outlook, Risks & Concerns

The Company is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its businesses and the environment within 
which it operates, including capital market volatility, economic cycle, and credit risk. The Company manages 
these risks by maintaining a conservative financial profile and by following prudent business and risk 
management policies.

Internal Control Systems

The Company has set in place adequate systems and procedures to effectively run and manage its 
operations.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

To,
The Members of
Aagam Capital Limited

As provided under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges, all the Board Members and 
Senior Management Personal h

ave affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29/05/2015                      

for Aagam Capital Limited
Sd/-

Anil Kothari
   (ExecutiveDirector)

CEO/ CFO Certification to the Board

I Certify that

a. I have reviewed the financial statements and the Cash flow Statement for the Year 2014-15 and that to 
the best to our knowledge and belief.

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading.

These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during 
the year 2014-15 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and we have disclosed to the Auditors 
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control, if any, of which we 
are aware of and the steps we have taken to propose or take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year 
under reference;

      ii)   There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure 
in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii)   We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of the 
management or any employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over 
financial reporting.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29/05/2015     

For AAGAM CAPITAL LIMITED
Sd/-

Anil Kothari
        (Director/CFO)
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PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES

    201, Galaxy Arcade Co-op Hsg. Soc., 57, M G Road, Vile Parle (East), Mumbai – 400 057
Tel.: 26100693

                       
         SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,                                                                                                                         
The Members,
Aagam Capital Limited
Room No. 2, 3rd Floor, 5/7, Kothari House, Oak Lane
Fort, Mumbai- 400023

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by AAGAM CAPITAL LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2015 complied   
with   the   statutory   provisions   listed  hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2015 according to the provisions of:
(i)   The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v) The Reserve bank of India Act, 1934 and rules and regulation made there under from time to time and any 

other modification enactment issue by RBI which is applicable on Non Banking Financial Companies 
(NBFC);

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The  Securities  and   Exchange   Board   of  India   (Substantial  Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009;

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on October 28, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

    P. D. Pandya & Associates 
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(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act  and dealing with client;

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations; and

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable 
to the Company during the Audit period).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (Not notified hence not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit period).

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below: 

1. As per section 203 of the Company's Act, 2013, all Listed Company compulsorily needs to appoint 
Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel  (KMP) who is Managing Director(MD), Chief Financial 
Officer(CFO) and Company Secretary(CS). As none of the KMP's has been appointed by the company 
during the year under review.       

2. As per section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 every listed company must have to appoint Internal 
Auditor who is a professional. Company has  appointed but not filed  form with ROC.

We further report that:

1) The Directors have disclosed their interest and concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings 
and directorships in other companies and interests in other entities as and when required and their 
disclosures have been noted and recorded by the Board;

2) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of 
appointments, their being independent and compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors and 
Senior Management Personnel;

3) The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

Place : Mumbai                                  For P. D. Pandya & Associates
Date : 29th May, 2015                    Practising  Company Secretary 
 
                                                                                                    ( Paresh Pandya)
                                                                                                          Proprietor
                                                                                                      ACS No. 12123
                                                                                                       C P No.: 4869

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A' and forms an 
integral part of this report.
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To,        
The Members,
Aagam Capital Limited
Room No. 2, 3rd Floor, 5/7, Kothari House, Oak Lane
Fort, Mumbai- 400023

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 
basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place : Mumbai                                  For P. D. Pandya & Associates
Date : 29th May, 2015                    Practising  Company Secretary 
 
                                                                                                    ( Paresh Pandya)
                                                                                                          Proprietor
                                                                                                      ACS No. 12123
                                                                                                       C P No.: 4869
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Numb  o eer f Shar s % o e o o pf total shar s f the c m any Numb  o eer f Shar s % e o o pof total shar s f the c m any

At n gthe begin in  of the year

At the end of the year

A . CHA  I OTERS HANGE N PROM S REHOLDING

S e ing n g  0har  hold  at the begin in  of the year 1/04/2014 S e ing  3har  hold  at the end of the year 1/03/2015

C. 
Code

Category rehol r of Sha de  Demat  Physical T l resota Sha

(I) (II) (III) (IV) (V)

(a) INDIVIDUAL / HUF

0 0 0
(b) CENT  GOVERNM NT S)RAL / STATE E (

0 0 0
(c) BO S CORPORADIE TE

0 0 0
(d) FINA NS / BANCIAL INSTITUTIO NKS

0 0 0
(e) A T RS (SpecifyNY O HE )

(i) DIRECT RS RELA SO TIVE 0 0 0

(ii) GRO MP NIESUP CO A 0 0 0

(iii) TRUSTS 0 0 0

SUB T T (1)  :O AL  (A) 0 0 0
(a) INDIVIDUAL

0 0 0
(b) BO S CORPORADIE TE

0 0 0
(c) INST NSITUTIO

0 0 0
(d) QUA IFIED FO IGN INVEST RL RE O

0 0 0
(e) A T RS (SpecifyNY O HE )

0 0 0

SUB T T (2)  :O AL  (A) 0 0 0

(A)= A)(1) + (A)(2)( 0 0 0

T tal (A  + B) :o )  ( 0 0 0

(a) M NDS / UTUTUAL FU I

0 0 0
(b) FINA NS / BANCIAL INSTITUTIO NKS

0 0 0
(c) CENT  GOVERNM NT S)RAL / STATE E (

0 0 0
(d) VENT CA IT NDSURE P AL FU

0 0 0
(e) INSURA CO SNCE MPANIE

0 0 0
(f) FII'S

0 0 0
(g) FOREIGN VENT CA IT ST RSURE P AL INVE O

0 0 0
(h) QUA IFIED FO IGN INVEST RL RE O

0 0 0
(i) A T RS (SpecifyNY O HE )

0 0 0

SUB T T )(1)  :O AL  (B 0 0 0
(a) BO S CORPORADIE TE

1885798 0 1885798
(b) INDIVIDUAL

(i) (CAPIT L UP  T   Rs. 1 LakA TO O h) 1107810 7802 1115612

(ii) (CAPIT L GREA R T N  Rs  LakA TE HA . 1 h) 1868744 0 1868744

Statement Show hareholding Patt rning S e

No. Shares hel the beg nning of the y r:  01/04/2014  of d at i   ea
00:0

T tal holding for promotero s

(c) QUA IFIED FO IGN INVEST RL RE O

T lota %

(VI)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

37.72

22.31

37.37

0 0 0
(d) A T RS (SpecifyNY O HE )

(i) TRUSTS 0 0 0

(ii) CLE RING RA  MEMBE 129822 0 129822

(iii) DIRECT RS RELA SO TIVE 0 0 0

(iv) EMP Y ELO E 0 0 0

(v) NO SIDENT  (NRI)N RE  INDIANS 24 0 24

(vi) OVERSEAS B DIES CORPORA SO TE 0 0 0

(vii) UNCLAIME USPENSE AD S CCOUNT 0 0 0

SUB T T )(2)  :O AL  (B 4992198 7802 5000000

(B)= B)(1) + (B)(2)( 4992198 7802 5000000

T tal (A  + B) :o )  ( 4992198 7802 5000000

(a) SHA S HELD BY T DIARE  CUS O NS

0 0 0
(i) Prom r and P om r Groupote r ote 0 0 0

(ii) Public 0 0 0

SUB T T )(1)  :O AL  (C 0 0 0

(C)= C)(1)( 0

T tal (A  + B) :o )  ( 4992198 7802 5000000

Grand T tal (A  + B) + C)o )  (  ( 4992198 7802 5000000

NO S :TE

1) NAME,NUMB R OF S RES HELD & RCENT GE OF ENT  / P RSONS HOLDING  MORE T N 1% OF T  T T L S RES  OF T  COMP NY IS  P R ANNEXUREE HA  PE A ITIES E HA HE O A HA HE A  AS E

T tal Public S ar ldingo h eho

 Demat  Physical T l resota Sha T l %ota

(VII) (VIII) (IX) (IX)

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00

2913765 0 2913765 58.28

691850 7802 699652 13.99

1380544 0 1380544 27.61

No. Shares hel the end of the y r :31/03/2015of d at  ea

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

2.60 3920 0 3920 0.08

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

0.00 2119 0 2119 0.04

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

100.00 4992198 7802 5000000 100.00

100.00 4992198 7802 5000000 100.00

100.00 4992198 7802 5000000 100.00

0.00 0 0 0 0.00
0.00 0 0 0 0.00

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

0.00 0 0 0 0.00

100.00 4992198 7802 5000000 100.00

100.00 4992198 7802 5000000 100.00
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166,442 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

9 A  SSHA SANJAY HAH 56,587 1 Ap -1- r 4 0 T ar nsfer

9 Ma 1- y- 4 121660 T ar nsfer

1 Ma 16- y- 4 -12000 T ar nsfer

3 Ma 10- y- 4 -41466 T ar nsfer

3 Ju 10- n- 4 253 T ar nsfer

125,034 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

10 123,678 1 Ap -1- r 4 0 T ar nsferB DH   LO A SECURITIES
LIMITED

7.27

8.37

9.03

17.34

19.45

20.01

19.81

21.02

21.02

4.92

5.72

0.92

0.92

0.00

4.88

4.88

0.74

0.00

4.80

4.80

4.59

4.59

3.31

3.65

3.66

3.64

4.05

4.44

4.44

3.46

3.46

2.83

3.02

3.10

3.11

3.33

1 MONO HERBICIDES LTD. 363,433 1 Ap -1- r 4 0 T ar nsfer

1 Ap -11- r 4 55000 T ar nsfer

8 Au 1- g- 4 33000 T ar nsfer

2 A 12- ug- 4 415777 T ar nsfer

5 Se 1- p- 4 105395 T ar nsfer

1 Se 19- p- 4 27647 T ar nsfer

2 S 17- ep- 4 -10000 T ar nsfer

1 Oct-10- 4 60501 T ar nsfer

1,050,753 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

2 246,100 1 A -1- pr 4 0 T ar nsfer

1 Se 12- p- 4 40000 T ar nsfer

3 Dec-11- 4 -240000 T ar nsfer

46,100 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

3 0 1 A -1- pr 4 T ar nsfer

1 Oct-17- 4 244198 T ar nsfer

244,198 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

4 37,000 1 A -1- pr 4 0 T ar nsfer

2 Se 14- p- 4 -37000 T ar nsfer

3 Dec-11- 4 240000 T ar nsfer

240,000 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

5 229,476 1 A -1- pr 4 0 T ar nsfer

229,476 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

6 165,261 1 A -1- pr 4 0 T ar nsfer

1 Ap -18- r 4 17000 T ar nsfer

4 Ju- l-14 602 T ar nsfer

1 Se 12- p- 4 -934 T ar nsfer

3 Se 10- p- 4 20504 T ar nsfer

221,933 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

3 Ma -11- r 5 19500 T ar nsfer

7 173,000 1 Ap -1- r 4 0 T ar nsfer

173,000 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

8 P HAHRITESHKUMAR H S 141,268 1 Ap -1- r 4 0 T ar nsfer

2 Ma 1- y- 4 9859 T ar nsfer

3 Ju 10- n- 4 4065 T ar nsfer

1 Se 12- p- 4 200 T ar nsfer

3 Se 10- p- 4 11050 T ar nsfer

W MEINSO  TRACOM 
PRIVATE LIMITED

IV RY CONSUL NT  O TA S
PVT. LTD.

HARIDARSHAN S L S A E
PVT. LTD.

L OL E  ILYG D M RCHANTS
PRIVATE LIMITED

HAS UKHBHAI NIL LM  MA A  
SHAH

B IK E  P TALM I AG NCIES V . 
LTD.

D. TOP T  NON PROM T S M VEM TEN O ER O EN

Sr.No NA EM No.  of Shares at

the be ng/E  gini nd

of the year

Date Increase/Decrease in 

s holdinghare-

Reason

363,433

418,433

451,433

867,210

972,605

1,000,252

990,252

1,050,753

1,050,753

246,100

286,100

46,100

46,100

0

244,198

244,198

37,000

0

240,000

240,000

229,476

229,476

165,261

182,261

182,863

181,929

202,433

221,933

221,933

173,000

173,000

141,268

151,127

155,192

155,392

166,442

Number of 

Shares

P  ercentage of

tot  al shares of

the company

166,442 3.33

56,587 1.13

178,247 3.56

166,247 3.32

124,781 2.50

125,034 2.50

125,034 2.50

123,678 2.47
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4 Ap -1- r 4 27000 T ar nsfer

1 Ap -11- r 4 52852 T ar nsfer

1 Ap -18- r 4 54841 T ar nsfer

2 Ma 1- y- 4 -20911 T ar nsfer

9 Ma 1- y- 4 4065 T ar nsfer

1 Ma 16- y- 4 -183130 T ar nsfer

2 Ma 13- y- 4 662 T ar nsfer

6 Ju 1- n- 4 -25 T ar nsfer

1 Ju 13- n- 4 -905 T ar nsfer

2 Ju 10- n- 4 -253 T ar nsfer

3 Ju 10- n- 4 61936 T ar nsfer

4 Ju- l-14 125878 T ar nsfer

1 Ju1- l-14 -77459 T ar nsfer

1 Ju8- l-14 32664 T ar nsfer

2 Ju5- l-14 15910 T ar nsfer

1 Au 15- g- 4 28000 T ar nsfer

2 Au 12- g- 4 -26179 T ar nsfer

2 Au 19- g- 4 15000 T ar nsfer

5 S 1- ep- 4 -2894 T ar nsfer

1 Se 12- p- 4 -77179 T ar nsfer

2 Se 14- p- 4 10504 T ar nsfer

3 Se 10- p- 4 -31554 T ar nsfer

1 Oct-10- 4 -42883 T ar nsfer

1 Oct-17- 4 9292 T ar nsfer

1 Nov 14- - 4 8903 T ar nsfer

2 Nov 18- - 4 74397 T ar nsfer

3 Dec-11- 4 -182210 T ar nsfer

6 Feb 1- - 5 9505 T ar nsfer

1 Ma -13- r 5 19500 T ar nsfer

3 Ma -11- r 5 -19500 T ar nsfer

9,505 3 Ma -11- r 5 0 T ar nsfer

150,678 3.01

203,530 4.07

258,371 5.17

237,460 4.75

241,525 4.83

58,395 1.17

59,057 1.18

59,032 1.18

58,127 1.16

57,874 1.16

119,810 2.40

245,688 4.91

168,229 3.36

200,893 4.02

216,803 4.34

244,803 4.90

218,624 4.37

233,624 4.67

230,730 4.61

153,551 3.07

164,055 3.28

132,501 2.65

89,618 1.79

98,910 1.98

107,813 2.16

182,210 3.64

0 0.00

9,505 0.19

29,005 0.58

9,505 0.19

9,505 0.19

V INDEBT DNESSE

(  in Rupeeamt s)

Inde e of t  Company including int out ing/a not due f paybtedn ss  he  erest stand ccrued but   or ment

Secured 

Loans

 e uding xcl

depos ti s

Unsecured 

Loans

De s tpo i s T  otal

Inde ebtedn ss

i) Pr n p  m i ci al A ount

ii) In e  d b  n  p d t rest ue ut ot ai

iii) In e  a b  n  d t rest ccrued ut ot ue

T  ( + i+ ii)otal i i i

ii) In e  d b  n  p d t rest ue ut ot ai

iii) In e  a b  n  d t rest ccrued ut ot ue

T  ( + i+ ii)otal i i i

i) Pr n p  m i ci al A ount

Inde s a t  beginning of t  btne s t he  he

f nancia  yi l ear

Change in Inde e during t   btedn ss he

f nancia  yi l ear

Ad tiodi ns

Re ioduct n

Inde e a t  e  of t  f nancia  btedn ss t he nd  he i l

year

Re n a ei st t ment

Ne Changet 

50000

50000

50000

50000
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VI REM NERA ON OF DIRECT RS D KEY M A ERIA RSONNELU TI O AN  AN G L PE

A. Re ra on t a ging Dire  W le t me dire a /or Ma ger:mune ti o M na ctor, ho  i  ctor nd na

Sl.No

1 Gros s as al ry A  Kot rinil ha

J raanu m 

Hinduram 

Choudhury T  total Amoun

NIL NIL NIL

2 Sto o iock pt n

3 Sw  Eq tyeat ui

4 Co ssiommi n

a % o  p its f rof

o h ( fyt ers speci )

5 Oth  p e sp fyers, l ase eci

T  (otal A)

Ce ling a per t  i s he Act

Na of t  M /W /M ger/Direme  he D TD ana ctorPa ic of Re ra on rt ulars  mune ti

( Sa a a p p sioa) l ry s er rovi ns 

co a n in se io 1 o  thnt i ed  ct n 7(1) f e 

In  1come Tax. 961.

( V u o  p site u s b) al e f erqui s /

1 o  th In ta ct, 7(2) f e come x A

1961

( ) Pr its in lie o  sa a uc  of  u f l ry nder 

se io 1 o  th Inct n 7(3) f e come Tax 

Act, 1961

Aagam Capital Limited (Formerly known as Subhkam Capital Limited) Annual Report 2015

B. Re ra on t r diremune ti o othe ctors:

Sl.No T  total Amoun

1 In  Dir odependent ect rs

( Co ssiob) mmi n

( ) Oth  p e sp fyc  ers, l ase eci

T  (otal 1)

2 Oth No Ex iv Dir oer n ecut e ect rs

( Co ssiob) mmi n

( ) Oth  p e sp fyc  ers, l ase eci .

T  (otal 2)

Na of t  Direme  he ctors

( Fee fo a te na)  r t ndi g 
b co tte m inoard mmi e eet gs

Pa ic of Re ra onrt ulars  mune ti

( Fee fo a te n b co ttea)  r t ndi g oard mmi e 
m ineet gs

T  ( )otal B =(1+2)

T  M geria  Re ra onotal ana l mune ti

Ov l Cie ing a per t  eral l s he Act.

Mr. Shital Mutha Mr. Shailendra Kumar Patne Mrs. Sudarshana Mitra

C. REM NERA ON T  KEY M A ERIA RSONNEL OT ER T A  M /M A ER/WU TI O  AN G L PE H H N D AN G TD

Sl. No.

1 CEO N.A N.A

2 Sto Op iock t n

3 Sw  Eq tyeat ui

4 Co ssiommi n

a % o  p its f rof

o h  sp fyt ers, eci

5 Oth  p e sp fyers, l ase eci

Total 0 0. 0 0 0. 0

( ) Pr its in lie o  sa a uc  of  u f l ry nder 

se io 1 o  th Inct n 7(3) f e come Tax 

Act, 1961

Ke M geria  Pe nely ana l rsonPa ic of Re ra onrt ulars  mune ti

( Sa a a p p sioa) l ry s er rovi ns 

co a n in se io 1 o  thnt i ed  ct n 7(1) f e 

In ct, 1come Tax A 961.

( V u o  p site u s b) al e f erqui s /

1 o  th In ct, 7(2) f e come Tax A

1961

sa a Dire ome s ct r

Gros Sa as l ry
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VII PENA ES/PUNISHM NT COM POUNDING OF OF ENCESLTI E / P F

T eyp Section of 

the 

Companies 

A tc

Brief 

Description

Details of 

Penalty Punis/

hme t/Compon

unding fees 

imposed

A thorityu  

(RD/NCLT/

Court)

A peall ma e p d

if any (giv   e

details)

Penalty

Punishme tn

Comp undingo

Penalty

Punishme tn

Comp undingo

 
Penalty

Punishme tn

Comp undingo

A   COM Y  NIL. PAN -

B. DIRECT S - NILOR

C. OTHER OF ICERS IN DEF L - NILF AU T 



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Aagam Capital Limited ('the 
Company'), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2015, the statement of profit and loss and 
the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's 
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the 
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2015 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Aagam Capital Limited
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books;
(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account;
(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014;

(e) Account has been drawn under going concern concept.
(f) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2015 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2015 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”.

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements, if any.

ii. the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts, if any; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company, if applicable.

For Motilal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.:106584W

Sd/-
(Motilal Jain)
M. No. 036811

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29/05/2015

Aagam Capital Limited (Formerly known as Subhkam Capital Limited) Annual Report 2015
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
Issued by the Central Government under sub section 11 of section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013, (18 of 2013)

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, we report that:

(I)
a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of fixed assets; 

b) The Company has regular programme of physically verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets 
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, 
certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(II) In respect of inventories:

a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable.

b) The procedures of the physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable 
and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business. 

c) The company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification 
between the physical stock and the book records have been appropriately dealt with in the books of 
account.

(III)
(a) The Company has not granted loans to any party covered in the register maintained under section 189 

of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').

(IV) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with 
regard to purchase of fixed assets and sale of services. We have not observed any major weakness in 
the internal control system during the course of the audit.

(V) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(VI) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of 
the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(VII)
a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess 
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2015 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of wealth tax, 
duty of customs and cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of 
any dispute. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us the no amount was required to be transferred 
to the investor education and protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules there under has been transferred to such fund within time.
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(VIII) The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not 
incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(IX) The Company did not have any outstanding dues to financial institutions, banks or debenture holders 
during the year.

(X) In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given to us, the Company has not 
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

(XI) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

(XII) Based upon the audit Procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report 
that no fraud on or before by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit

For Motilal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.:106584W

Sd/-
(Motilal Jain)
M. No. 036811

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29/05/2015
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P  I  BAART  — LANCE SHEET

A pita itedagam Ca l Lim

Forme w hka Capita iterly kno n as Sub m l Lim d

Bala  a  3 rcnce Sheet s at 1 Ma h 2015

Note No.

Figure  the  s as at  end

of c  re rting urrent po

period

Figure  the  s as at  end

of e e th  pr vious 

re rting pepo riod

I. E UITYQ  AND LIABILITIES

1 S lde undshareho rs’ f

(a) S e ahar  c pital 2 50,000,000

                 

50,000,000

                 

(b) Rese v a u p sr es nd s r lu 3 (29,159,459)

                

(30,322,014)

                

(c) Mo st sh e raney received again ar  war nts -

                              

-

                             

2 S li ion money ing ahare app cat  pend llotment -

                              

-

                             

3 Non- itiecurrent liabil s

(a  ) L te m b ro gong- r or win s 4 50,000

                        

50,000

                       

(b  ) Def re a itie (Net)er d tax li bil s -

                              

-

                             

(c) Oth  L m lia itieer ong ter bil s -

                              

-

                             

(d  ) L te m p o ionong- r r vis s -

                              

-

                             

4 Current liabilities

(a  ) S t-te m b ro ghor r or win s -

                              

-

                             

(b  ) T a sr de payable -

                              

-

                             

(c) Oth  cu re a itieer r nt li bil s 5 528,993

                      
306,134

                     

(d  ) S t-te m p o ionhor r r vis s 6 37,891
                        

34,846
                       

21,457,425
                 

20,068,966
                 

II. ASSETS

Non- scurrent asset

1 (a  ) Fixed assets 7

(i) T le aangib ssets 65,099                        135,792                     
(b  ) Non cu re v me- r nt in est nts -

                              
-

                             
(c) Def re  (neer d tax assets t) -

                              
-

                             (d  ) L te m lo aong- r ans nd advances 8 1,129,836

                   
1,129,836

                  (e  ) Oth  n cu reer on- r nt assets -

                              

-

                             2 Curre snt asset

(a  ) Curre v ment in est nts -

                              

-

                             
(b  ) In iesventor -

                              

-

                             
(c) T a sr de receivable -

                              

-

                             

(d  ) Cash a n and c sh equivale ts 9 281,688

                      

319,977

                     

(e) S t-te m lo ahor r ans nd advances 10 19,980,802

                 

18,483,361

                 

(f) Oth  cu reer r nt assets -

                              

-

                             

21,457,425

                 

20,068,966

                 

S fic nt poliigni ant Accou ing cies

S note  the nanc a e see accompanying s to  Fi ial St t ment . 1

A r rt of es per ou repo  even dat

For ot eM ilal & Associat s On Be  the rdhalf of  Boa

Cha re nt srte d Accou ant For Capita itedAagam l Lim

Firm gn No. Re 106584W (CIN : L6 H19 LC05990M 91P 64631)

Motilal Jain

(A ri)nil Kotha (J ra oudhaanu m Ch ry)

Me No.3mbership 6811 DIN: 1991283 DIN: 3501141

Dire orct Dire orct

Date  :

Place : Mumbai

29/05/2015

P eartn r

(A emount in Rup es)

Particulars

TOTAL

TOTAL
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P I – ST M NT F PROFIT SSART I ATE E  O  AND LO

Profit and loss s atement for the y ar ended 31 M rc 015t e a h 2

Note No.

Figures a  a  the end s t

of c nt reporting urre

period

Figures a  a  the end s t

of the previous 

reporting period

I Reve ue f om erationsn r  op 11 1,7 2,0 42 7

                   

1,4 5,8 59 0

                   

II In ease in Invento ies of /W in-tradcr r  FG IP/Stock- e -

                             

-

                            

III Other income 12 -

                             

1,411

                         

IV T al Rev nue (I + II + III)ot e 1,7 2,0 42 7

                   

1,4 7,2 69 1

                   

V Expenses:

Cost o te ials co sum df ma r n e -

                             

-

                            

Purchases o to in-Tr def S ck- a -

                             

-

                            

-

                             

-

                            

Em loy e b nef ensep e e its exp 13 84

                               

69,1 30

                       

Finance costs 14 6,8 14

                          

4,7 57

                         

Dep eciation d a rtiz tion e enser  an mo a xp 7 70,6 39

                        

74,8 66

                       

Other e ensesxp 15 566,0 97

                      
784,0 48

                     

Con g nt Provision a inst standard a tstin e ga sse 6 3,0 54
                          

1,6 78
                         

T al expensesot 646,7 24                      934,5 61                     

VI
1,0 5,3 27 3                   562,7 00                     

VII Exceptional items 20,0 00
                        

-
                            VIII 1,0 5,3 25 3

                   
562,7 00

                     
IX Extraordina yr  items -

                             

-

                            
X Profit before tax (VIII- IX) 1,0 5,3 25 3

                   

562,7 00

                     
XI T x e pense:a x

1 Current tax -

                             

107,2 32

                     

2 Def rred taxe

3 (Excess)/ Short Provision f r Ta arlier Y aro x of E e (107,2 3)2

                    

XII 1,1 2,5 56 5

                   

455,4 77

                     

XIII Prof oss) f om uing o erationsit/(l r  discontin p -

                             

-

                            

XIV Tax e ense o uing o erationsxp f discontin p -

                             

-

                            

XV -

                             

-

                            

XVI Profit (Loss) for the period (XII + X )V 1,1 2,5 56 5

                   

455,4 77

                     

XVII Earnings per equity re: sha

1 Basic 00.23

                          

00.09

                         

2 Diluted 00.23

                          

00.09

                         

A  per our re  of even dates port

For M ilal & A socia esot s t On Behalf of the Board

Chartered A countantsc For A gam Capital Limiteda

Firm Regn No. 106584W (CIN : L65990M 1PLC064631)H199

M ilal Jainot

Partner (A  Kothari)nil (Januram Choudhary)

M mbership No.3681e 1 DIN: 91283 19 DIN: 01 41 35 1

Director Director

Date  : 29/05/2 150

Pla e :c M iumba

Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing 

operations (X-XI)

Profit/(loss) from Dis ont ra ions c inuing ope t

(after tax) (XIII-XIV)

(A n Rupees)mount i

Cha g s in invento ies of ed g ods w rk-in-n e r  finish o o
prog ess a d Sto in-Tr der n ck- a

Particulars

Profit before e ceptional and extra ryx ordina  

items a ax (IV - V)nd t

Profit before e traordinary tems ax        x  i  and t

(VI - VII)
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PA T III – ST T OF CA  FLOWR  ATEMEN  SH

A gam Capital Limiteda

Cash Flow Statement for the y ar ende  3 Marc  2 5 e d 1 h 01

31/03/2015 31/03/2014

Cash flow  from operating activ ties be re taxs i fo  

Net Profit before tax 1,055,332

                   

562,700

                      

A j stments for:d u

Depreciation and  rtiz tionAmo a 70,693

                        

74,866

                       

Interest Income (1,722,074)

                  

(1,495,805)

                  

Finance costs 6,841

                          

4,775

                         

Contingent Provision against Stan  sdard Asset 3,045

                          

1,687

                         

Operating profit / (loss) before w rking c ital c a geo ap h n s (586,163)

                     

(851,776)

                     

Changes in W rking Capital:o

(Increase)/Decrease in Short-T rm L a vancese oans nd Ad (1,497,441)

                  

(677,378)

                     

Increase/(Decrease) in Other curren  lia litiet bi s 222,859

                      

121,228

                      

Increase/(Decrease) in Short-T rm Pro sioe vi ns 3,045

                          

(1 ,1 2)1 1

                       

Increase/(Decrease) in Long-T rm Pro sioe vi ns -

                             

(24,673)

                       

Profit generated from operations (1,857,700)

                  

(1,443,71 )1

                  

Cash flow from extraordinary items  -

                             

-

                            

Cash generated from operations (1,857,700)

                  
(1,443,71 )1

                  

T x paid (net of refunds)a 107,223
                      

(107,223)
                     

Net Cash From/(Used in ) Operating v tieActi i s (A) (1,750,477)
                  

(1,550,934)
                  

Cash Flow  from Inv sting tiv tiess e Ac i

Interest received 1,722,074                   1,495,805                   

Contingent Provision against Stan  sdard Asset (3,045)                         (1,687)                        
Net cash from/(Used in) Inv sting tiv tiee Ac i s (B) 1,719,029                   1,494,1 81                   
Cash flow  from Financing tiv tiess Ac i

Proceeds from long-term borrow ni gs -
                             

50,000
                       

Finance cost (6,841)
                         

(4,775)
                        Net cash from/(Used in) Financing tiv tieAc i s (C) (6,841)

                         
45,225

                       Increase in Cash and Cash Equiv lents during the y aa  e r (A + )+B C (38,289)

                       

(1 ,591)1

                       Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginn n o  th y ri g f e ea 319,977

                      

331,568

                      Cash and Cash Equiv lents at the end of the ya  ear 281,688

                      

319,977

                      
-

                             

-

                            Note: ev ous ar figures has been re roupe /re rra ged w e e  c nsidered necessaryPr i Ye g d a n h r ver o .

A  per our report on ev n dates e

For Motilal & sociatesAs On Be a f of the Boardh l

Chartered countantsAc For a  Capital LimitedAag m

Firm Regn No. 106584W (CIN : L6 1991PLC064631) 5990MH

Motilal Jain (A il Kotha i)n r (Januram Choudhary)

Partner DIN: 1 991283 (3501 41)1

Membership No.36811 Dire rcto Director

Date  : 29/05/2015

Place : Mumbai
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Note 1 – Notes to the Financial Statements
Background
“Aagam Capital Limited” ('the Company') was incorporated in India on December 27, 1991 as “Principle 
Capital Markets Limited”. The name was changed on February 7, 1996 and June 26, 2006 to “Principal 
Capital Markets Limited” and “Subhkam Capital Limited” respectively. The name was further changed on 
January 23, 2013 to “Aagam Capital Limited”.

The Company is engaged in the business of dealing in share and securities.

The Company received its certificate of registration as a non-banking finance company on August 5, 1998 
from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Department of Non-Banking Supervision, Mumbai Regional Office, in 
its former name “Principal Capital Markets Limited” which was changed subsequently to “Subhkam Capital 
Limited” and further changed to “Aagam Capital Limited”. The company has received the revised certificate 
of registration from RBI subsequent to the change of name to “Aagam Capital Limited”.

1.  Significant Accounting Policies :
a. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on 
accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) in India. GAAP includes Accounting Standards (AS) notified by the Government of India under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, pronouncements of 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI). The Company has presented financial statements as per format prescribed by Revised 
Schedule III, notified under the Companies Act, 2013, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Except 
where otherwise stated, the accounting policies are consistently applied. 

   
b. Fixed Assets and Depreciation/ Amortisation
• Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated 
depreciation.

The cost of fixed asset includes non-refundable taxes & levies, freight and other incidental 
expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the respective assets. Borrowing cost attributable 
to acquisition or construction of qualifying fixed assets is capitalized to respective assets when the time 
taken to put the assets to use is substantial. 
• Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight line method on the basis of the depreciation 
rates prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 or based on useful life of the asset as 
estimated by the management, whichever is higher.

c. Investments
Investments are classified as long term or current based on management's intention at the time of 
purchase. Investments which are intended to be held for one year or more are classified as long term 
investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are classified as 
current investments. 

Long term investments are recorded at cost as on the date of transaction and any decline in the carrying 
value other than temporary in nature is provided for. Current investments are valued at cost or 
market/fair value, whichever is lower. 

d. Revenue Recognition
i) Interest income is accounted on accrual basis.
ii) Realised gains and losses in respect of equity securities and units of mutual funds are calculated as 
the difference between the net sales proceeds and their cost. Cost in respect of equity shares and units 
of mutual funds are computed using first in first out (FIFO) method.

e. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the results are known /materialised.

Aagam Capital Limited (Formerly known as Subhkam Capital Limited) Annual Report 2015



1346

i) Margin Deposits representing margin paid for entering into a contract for equity index/stock futures 
which are released on final settlement/squaring up of the underlying contract, are disclosed under 
Loans and advances.

ii) Equity index/stock futures are marked to market on a daily basis. Debit  or credit balance disclosed 
under Loans and  Advances or Current Liabilities respectively in the “Mark- to- Market Margin - 
Equity Index/Stock Futures account “ represents the net amount paid or received on the basis of  
movement in the prices of index/stock futures till the Balance Sheet date.

iii) As on the Balance Sheet date profit/loss on open positions in equity index/stock futures in 
accounted for as follows:
• Credit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin-Equity Index/Stock Futures Account” being the 

anticipated profit is ignored and no credit for the same is taken in the Profit and Loss Account.
• Debit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin–Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, being the 

anticipated loss is adjusted in the Profit and Loss Account.

iv) On final settlement or squaring up of contracts for equity index/stock futures the profit or loss is 
calculated as the difference between the settlement/squaring up price and the contract price. 
Accordingly debit or credit balance pertaining to the settled/squared up contract in “Mark-to- 
Market Margin – Equity Index/stock Futures Account”, after adjustment of the provision for 
anticipated losses is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

g. Equity Index / Stock Options
i) “Equity Index/Stock option premium account” represents premium paid or received for buying or 

selling the options, respectively.

ii) Margin deposits representing margin paid for entering into contract for equity index /stock options 
which are released on final settlement/squaring up of the underlying contracts are disclosed under 
Loans and Advances.

iii) As at the Balance Sheet date in the case of long positions provision is made for the amount by 
which the premium paid for those options exceeds the premium prevailing on the balance sheet 
date, and in the case of short positions for the amount by which the premium prevailing on the 
balance sheet date exceeds the premium received for those options and is reflected in “Provision 
for loss on equity Index/Stock Options Account.”

iv) When the option contracts are squared up before the expiry of the options the premium prevailing 
on that date is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 

On the expiry of the contracts and on exercising the options the difference between the final 
settlement price and the strike price is transferred to the Profit and Loss Account.

      In both the cases, the premium paid or received for buying or selling the option as the case may be 
is recognized in the profit and loss account for the squared–up/settled contracts.

h. Taxes on Income 
Provision for current tax is made on the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant 
assessment year. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) eligible for set off in subsequent years, (as per tax laws) 
is recognized as an asset by way of credit to the Profit and Loss Account only if there is convincing 
evidence of its realisation. At each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement 
receivable is reviewed to reassure realisation. 

Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on 
timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate 
in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised mainly on account of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses to the extent that 
there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised.

f. Equity Index / Stock Futures.
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i. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that 
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resource is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made.

j. The Company follows the Prudential Norms for Assets Classification, Income Recognition, 
Accounting Standards, Provision for non-performing assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India 
under Non-Banking Financial (Non deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. During the year, these norms have been amended, mandating 0.25% 
provision against the outstanding standard assets. 

2. Deferred Tax Balances
On the basis of prudence, the company has not recognized deferred tax assets essentially on account of 
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses as at 31st March 2015, in the absence of virtual 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets 
can be realised.

3. Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
There are no dues to micro and small enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 which are outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date. Further, during the year 
there were no delays on making the payment to any micro or small enterprise. This information has been 
determined on the basis of information available with the company. This has been relied upon by the 
Auditors.

4. Segment Information
The Company is primarily engaged in a single segment business of finance and investment and is 
governed by risks and returns which are similar. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements in terms of the 
Accounting Standard on Segmental Reporting (AS-17) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, are not applicable.

5. Related Party Disclosures :
a) Related parties with whom the Company had transactions during the year: 

1) Enterprise controlled by Key Management Personnel & their relative :-  N.A.
2) Key Management Personnel :-

Anil Kothari (Director)

3) Relatives of Key Management Personnel :-
Manisha Kothari
Vimaladevi Mansukhlal Kothari

b) Transactions with related parties during the year:

      Year ended  Year ended
   March 31, 2015       March 31, 2014
             (`)            (`)

Anil Kothari Nil 50,000
Loans Taken             

Manisha Kothari           90,000          75,000
Vimladevi Kothari           90,000  75,000
Rent Paid                                       

      
c) Related Party balances as at the year end:

     Receivable/(Payable) from/to related parties : (1,80,000) (2,00,000)
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6.
margin money.

7. Earnings Per Share:

8. Director's remuneration Rs Nil (Previous Year Rs Nil).

9. Open interest in Equity Index/Stock Futures as at the balance sheet date is NIL (Previous Year Rs Nil).
 
10.  Option contracts outstanding as on the balance sheet date is NIL (Previous Year Rs Nil). 

11. Schedule in terms of paragraph 13 of Non – Banking financial (Non – Deposit accepting or Holding) 
Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 is given in Annexure I.

12. Previous Year's figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current 
year's classification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

 

The Company has placed fixed deposit of Rs. 1,55,864/- (Previous Year Rs.1,44,434/-) with bank as 

Particulars Y r nd  ea E ed Y r nd  ea E ed

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

(a) rof t af er n f he y r (R ees)P i t Taxatio or t ea up 10,55,332 562,700               

      Less : Curr t en Tax (107,223)              

    dd : Ex ov  f ax f rl rsA cess pr ision or t  or ea ier yea 107223

(b) rof t considered f i Earning Per hareP i or comput ng s S 11,62,555 455,477               

(c) W av ber of shares (eighted erage num  Nos.) 5,000,000             5,000,000             

(d) asi and Di Earning Per hare ( ees)B c luted s S Rup 0.23 0.09

(e) ominal v  of shares outstandi (R ees)N  alue  ng up 10.00 10.00
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Note rming pa  the ia a es fo rt of  financ l st t ments

A 3s on 1 

March 2015 

Amount in 

(Rs.)

A 3s on 1 

March 2014 

Amount in 

(Rs.)

3 Res  Serves and urplus

(a  ) S itie Pre ium Re vecur s m ser e; 25,350,000

      

25,350,000

      

(b  ) 1,358,605

        

1,358,605

        

(c) (55,868,064)

     

(57,030,619)

     

(29,159,459)

     

(30,322,014)

     

4 Long-Te  Borrow e s srm ings (S cured, con idered good )

(a  ) L a f o  re te tieoans nd advances r m la d par s; 50,000

             
50,000

             

50,000
             

50,000
             

Note :s 

i.

5 Othe itier current liabil s

(a  ) Oth  p ser ayable 528,993
           

306,134
           528,993

           
306,134

           

6 S rt- e  provho t rm isions

(a  ) Con ro ion st S dtigent P vis  again tandar  Assets 37,891

             

34,846

             
37,891

             

34,846

             
Note :s 

i A o o ion st sta d  h b re o ta g ta d c ntingent pr vis  again ndar  assets as een c ated at 0.25% f the outs ndin  s ndar  

a  in ms w te e ibe Issets  ter ith the ra  pr scr d by RB

ii Mo e  co o ion st sta d  d ing  is a uvem nt in ntingent pr vis  again ndar  assets ur  the year s nder

Op genin 34,846

             

33,159

             

A odditi ns 3,045

               

1,687

               

Closing 37,891

             

34,846

             

8 Long-te  l  a erm oans and dvanc s

(a  ) Cap dital A vances;

(b  ) S ity ts;ecur  Deposi 112,500

           

112,500

           

(c) L a to te tie (g g s th e ;oans nd advances  rela d par s ivin  detail er of) -

                   

(d  ) Oth  lo aer ans nd advances 1,017,336

        

1,017,336

        

1,129,836

        

1,129,836

        

9 Cas  c iv sh and ash equ alent

(a  ) B n wala ces ith banks; 264,549

           

176,353

           

(b  ) Cash on hand; 17,139

             

143,624

           

281,688

           

319,977

           

10 S rt- e  l  a  a eho t rm oans nd dvanc s

(a) B n w n e itie (Unse e d eala ces ith gover m nt author s cur d, consi er d good)

(a) Advance Tax & TDS 353,504

           

74,073

             

(b) MA eT Cr dit 4,471,068 4,471,068
4,824,572 4,545,141

(b) Oth ser

(a) A a  in  K ddvance Recover ble  Cash Or in 15,156,230 13,938,220
15,156,230 13,938,220

Tota a b)l ( + 19,980,802 18,483,361

(A emount in Rup es)

Particulars

S a e v U/s 4 ct, peci l R ser es 5 IC of RBI A 1934

S p sur lu

T re o  t re o  o p  is inte e  f e a  lohe above Loan is ceived fr m he Di ct r f the Com any and it r st r e. The s id ans 
w e u reer  not taken in the c r nt year.
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Notes f  part of he financial ementsorming  t stat

A March s on 31 

2015 t in Amoun

(Rs.)

A March s on 31 

2014 t in Amoun

(Rs.)

11

(a) Interest 1,722,074

           

1,495,805

           

1,722,074

           

1,495,805

           

12 Other ncomei

(a) Interest  IT R dson  efun -

                     

1,411

                

-

                     

1,411

                

13 Employ  Benefi s Exp sesee t en

(a) Sal s and Warie ages -

                     

66,125

               

(b) Contribution to r g  Prov nt deo nised ide fun 84

                      

2,978

                

84

                      

69,103

               

14 Finance Costs

(a) Bank charg k Guarantee C rg es/Ban  ha es 6,841
                 

4,775
                

6,841
                 

4,775
                

15 Other Expenses 

(a) Pay o A torsment t udi

As audi ors  statut audit - ory t 28,090                28,090               
For other services 8,427                 5,618                

36,517
                

33,708
               (b) others

Rents 210,000

              
150,000

              Adv smenterti 21,843

                

24,440

               Demat/Deposi ory C rgt  ha es 60,091

                

52,467

               
Fee & Subscri nptio -

                     

2,330

                
Leg & Prof al C rgal ession  ha es 87,959

                

72,605

               
Li ing Feesst  112,360

              

16,854

               

M scel aneous Exi l p -

                     

378,034

              

Of ce Exfi p 15,365

                

12,220

               

Postag C rie & ou er exp 3,052

                 

7,329

                

Prof  ession Tax 2,500

                 

-

                    

Printing & Stationery 16,392

                

17,220

               

Shop Establ  Ex nsesishment pe -

                     

6,897

                

Repai s & M ce Ex nsesr aintanan pe -

                     

400

                   

529,562

              

740,796

              

( c) Insurance

Other Insurance incl i f y  of ce, g ds, ud ng actor , fi car, oo etc - 9,580

- 9,580

T  (a+b+c)otal 566,079 784,084

Particulars

In respect a f nance compan  rev ue from of i y, en

operati s on

Aagam Capital Limited (Formerly known as Subhkam Capital Limited) Annual Report 2015
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( r in s o Pa g p 3 o N nking Fina ial ( t Acce ng o Ho d ng) C p niAs equired term f ra ra h 1 f on-Ba nc Non Deposi  pti r l i om a es
 Pr al N s ( e B nk) D r t o 2007)udenti orm Reserv  a  i ec i ns, 

(  Rs. in Lakhs)
A untmo A untmo

Particulars Outstanding O rdve ue
L siabilitie  side

( ) a s va d1  Lo ns and advance  a ile  by the 
non m  f resbanking financial co pany inclusive o  inte t accrued
t thereon but no  paid:

( eb nt ca) D e ures : Se ured -

                     

-

                  

                           U s rn ecu ed -

                     

-

                  

 t t a f p s )    (o her han falling within the me ning o  public de o its*
( ef rred redb) D e  C its -

                     

-

                  

( rm ac) Te  Lo ns -

                     

-

                  

( r-c rp ra  a rrowid) Inte o o te lo ns and bo ngs -

                     

-

                  

( ) om rc re  C me ial Pape -

                     

-

                  

( L a ro i r)f) Other o ns (F m D recto 0.50

                    

-

                  

* a  e t   l wPle se se No e 1 be o

A tsse s side A untmo
Outstanding

( ) f a s2  Break-up o  Lo ns and Advance  including bills
rec i s t t s  d ) l w]e vable  [o her han tho e include  in (4  be o  :

( ca) Se ured -

                     

( cb) Unse ured 211.11

                

( ) f a d t c n t a t unt t wa C s3  Break up o  Le se  Asse s and sto k o hire and o her sse s co ing o rds AF activitie

( a  t a  r s d b rs :i) Le se asse s including le se rentals unde undry e to  
( i aa) F nancial le se -

                     

( ra ab) Ope ting le se -

                     

( c n s r s d b rsii) Sto k o hire including hire charge  unde undry e to :
( t n a) Asse s o hire -

                     

( s s d tb) Repo se se  Asse s -

                     

( t l a unt wa C siii) o her o ns co ing to rds AF activitie
( a t ve en s s da) Lo ns where asse s ha be repo se se -

                     

( a t tb) Lo ns o her han (a) above -

                     

( ) f nt4  Break-up o  Investme s :
Current nt Investme s 

1. t dQuo e  :
( yi) Shares : (a) Equit -

                     

                   (b) Preference -

                     

( eb nt ndii) D e ures and Bo s -

                     

( fiii) Units o  mutual funds -

                     

( rnm nt c siv) Gove e  Se uritie -

                     

( a  c y)v) Others (ple se spe if -

                     

2. t dUnquo e  :
( yi) Shares : (a) Equit
                   (b) Preference
( eb nt ndii) D e ures and Bo s
( fiii) Units o  mutual funds -
( rnm nt c siv) Gove e  Se uritie -

( i d p sv) Others (F xe  de o its) -

 i  Aagam Capital L mited
 n s a apit l )( Formerly K own a  Subhk m C a  Limited  

 U T BAL  S OF A DE IT NON BANK L C PA A MSCHED LES TO HE ANCE HEET  NON POS  TAKING ING FINANCIA  OM NY AS T ARCH 31, 2015 
Anne ure Ix  
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(  Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars A untmo A untmo

Outstanding O rdve ue
L ng rm nto  Te  investme s :

1. t dQuo e  :
( y i) Shares : (a) Equit -

                     

-

                  

                      (b) Preference -

                     

-

                  

( eb nt ndii) D e ures and Bo s -

                     

-

                  

( fiii) Units o  mutual funds -

                     

-

                  

( rnm nt c siv) Gove e  Se uritie -

                     

-

                  

( a  c y)v) Others (ple se spe if -

                  

2. t dUnquo e  :
( yi) Shares : (a) Equit -

                     

-

                  

                      (b) Preference -

                     

-

                  

( eb nt ndii) D e ures and Bo s -

                  

-

                  

( fiii) Units o  mutual funds -

                     

-

                  

( rnm nt c siv) Gove e  Se uritie -

                     

-

                  

( q y v) Others - e uit warrants -

                     

-

                  

( ) rrowe g wi  n f t d a i ) )5  Bo r roup- se classificatio o  asse s finance  s n (2  and (3  above
P a  e t   l w:le se se No e 2 be o

A unt f nsmo  net o  provisio
Ca g ryte o S ce ured Uns ce ured T to al

1. d s *Relate  Partie *
( sa) Subsidiarie -

               
-

                     
-

                  

( om s  b) C panie  in the same group -
               

-
                     

-
                  

( rel d sc) Other ate  partie -
               

-
                     

-
                  

2. t d sOther han relate  partie -
               

211.11
                

211.11
             

T to al -
               

211.11
                

211.11
             

( ) r g wi  n f nt6  Investo roup- se classificatio o  all investme s
( ng rm c scurrent and lo  te ) in shares and se uritie
( t t d t dbo h quo e  and unquo e ):
P a  e t   l w:le se se no e 3 be o

Ca g ryte o Market Value /  ok Bo Value
B r freak up o air ( t fNe  o

va r Nlue o AV P nsrovisio )

1. d s *Relate  Partie *
( sa) Subsidiarie -

                     

-

                  ( om s  b) C panie  in the same group -

                     

-

                  ( rel d sc) Other ate  partie  -

                     

-

                  
2. t d sOther han relate  partie  -

                     

-

                  
T to al -

                     

-

                  ( ) i rm n7  Other nfo atio A untmo
Particulars
( n- rform ti) Gross No Pe ing Asse s

( d sa) Relate  partie -

                     

( t d sb) Other han relate  partie -

                     

( t n- rform tii) Ne  No Pe ing Asse s
( d sa) Relate  partie -

                     

( t d sb) Other han relate  partie -

                     

( t n f biii) Asse s acquired in satisfactio o  de t -

                     

N t so e :
1. f ( ) f n- i om s A p  fAs de ined in Paragraph 2 1 (xii) o  the No Banking F nancial C panie  cce tance o  Public
Dep s rve i ns  998.o its (Rese Bank) D rectio , 1

Com s nt rm rve i ns  2007.panie  Prude ial No s (Rese Bank) D rectio ,
3. unt  t s I A  i r va nAll Acco ing Standards and Guidance No e  issued by C I are applicable ncluding fo luatio
of nt t a t n of d b  owe r,  investme s and o her sse s acquired in satisfactio e t. H ve market value in
res c f t d nt va i c f t d nt ulpe t o  quo e  investme s and break up/fair lue/NAV n respe t o  unquo e  investme s sho d
b  s d es c  f t d l ng rm or c i ) .e disclo e  irr pe tive o  whether hey are classifie  as o  te  urrent n (4  above

2. ni rm   d n-B i n- ep s p r HolProvisio ng no s shall be applicable as prescribe  in the No anking F nancial (No D o it Acce ting o ding)
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POLL N  P RI G APE

(For  N M Tm o. G -12)

(For  No. M Tm  G -12) [Pu nt to n 109 5) o  he C pani , 20  and ul 1 (c  o  rsua sectio (  f t om es Act  13 r e 21( ) ) f

the C pani ag ent and Ad i ra i ) R 14om es (Man em  m nist t on  ules, 20 ]

 

CIN 

           

: L65990M 91PLC 4631H19 06

 

Name o  he Co pany     f t m    : Aagam

 

C i al Li iteap t  m d

 

Reg ste ed ice       i r Off         

   

: R  N 2, 3rd 7, Kotha i H se, K Lane, Fo toom o   floor,5/  r  ou OA r , 
mumbai 400023, .

 

B P ERALLOT AP

 

Sr. 
No.

Particu arsl

 

D lsetai

 

1
Name o  he Fi s  N e rehol rsf t r t am d Sha de

 

(in Bl t ersock le t )

 
 

2 Postal ddressA

 

 

3
Reg si te ed ol . *Cl t D Nr f io No / ien I  o. 

 

(*Applicable to investors holding shares  in
demate ial  f )r ized orm 

 

4 Class o Sha ef r  

I reby  y espec   di ry esol n ume at  ecordi yhe  exercise m  vote in r t of Or na  r utio en r ed below by r ng m  

assent  di to the s l n ior ssent   aid reso utio n he annert  following m :  

No. Item
 

No. of 
shares held 

b mey 

 

I assen  o t t
the

 resolut oni

 

I d ssent to thei   
Resolution.

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements 
for the F.Y  2014  .

 

-

 

2015

 
   

2 Re-appointment of Mr. Anil Kothari who 

 
retires by ro ation  t

 
   3 Re-appointment of Motilal and Associates,

Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as 
Statuto y udi orsr  A t  

 

   
4 To appoint Mr. Shital Mutha as an

 

Independent D ecto ir r

 
   

5 To appoint Mr. Sailendra Patni  as 

 

Independent D ecto ir r

 
   

6 To Appoint Mrs. Sudarshana Mitra as an 

  

Independent D ecto ir r

 
   

Place :

Date   : (Sign o  he sha lderature f t reho )

Aagam Capital Limited (Formerly known as Subhkam Capital Limited) Annual Report 2015
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Aag  Capital Li i edam  m t
(C NI : L65990M 91PL 4631H19 C06 )

Reg ced. Offi : Room N d 5/7  Ko hari ouse, o 2, 3r floor, , t  H OAK Lane  Fo t, r , Mumbai - 400023

 
 

To,
Big re Serv ces Pv . L dsha  i t t

 

E-2/3, nsa Indus rial Es ate  A  t  t ,

 

Sak  V har Road, Sa N  i i   ki aka,

 

Andheri (Eas )  Mt , umbai,

 

M arashtra, 00ah 40 72

 

Dear Sir,

I/ hareholder (s  ofWe s )  Aag i  Li tedam Cap tal mi , re v l n es d ts i l i  t  n l ag e to recei e al otic an documen nc ud ng he A nua  
Report, Notice for General Meetings and other Shareholders Communication in electronic mode (through email).

I/We request you to kindly register my / our below mentioned email id in the Company's records for sending 
s h com i hro muc mun cation t ugh e ail. 

Fol d tio …No…………………………/DP  ID…N…o.…* ……………………an lien C ID 
No.*………………………………..

 
*Ap i rpl cable for membe s hares in e ectron holding s l ic form.

 Nam f e S  F s r e o  th ole / ir t Shareholde

 

:        
____ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ ___ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __

  

Nam f e Joi h rs ie o  th nt S areholde  ( f any)

 

:        
____ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ ___ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __

 
            

____ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ ___ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __

 

No. of Shares held

   

:        
____ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ ___ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __

 

E-m eipt of c ts iail id for rec  do umen n

 

El tro e ec nic mod

    

:        
____ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ ___ __ ____ __ __ ___ __ __ ____ __ __ _____ _ ___ __

 

Date:

         

Pl eac :

      

Sig t _ _ __ _ _ _na ure: ______ __ ___ __ __ ____

               

(S e / F sol ir t Shareholder)
Note:
1. reh ders e   n ar hare ans gents  d  Sha ol  are r quested to inform the Compa y’s Registr and S  Tr fer A as an  when
there han  i  ris c ge in the r e sgi tered email-id.

 

2. f res he f harehol rs are eques o nf pdat he  emor sha ld in demat orm, s de  also r ted t  i orm /u e t ir ail -i  ds to 
thei  resp ti os artic .r ec ve Dep itory P ipants

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by 
allowing paperless compliances by the Companies vide its circular no. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and 
18/2011 dated April 29, 2011 after considering certain provisions of the Information Technology Act, 2000, 
permitted the companies to send the notices / annual reports etc. through email to its members. To support 
this green initiative of the MCA whole heartedly, members who have not yet registered their email address, 
are requested to register their e-mail address with the Depository through their concerned Depository 
Participant and members who hold shares in physical mode are requested to intimate their e-mail address 
at which they would like to receive the above documents electronically, either to the company or to its 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Shareholders are requested to fill the consent form below and send it 
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt Ltd or to the company

CONSENT FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTS IN ELECTRONIC MODE
(Pursuant to circulars no. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and 18/2011 dated April 29, 2011)
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Reg ce Room N d 5/7  Ko hari ouse,d. Offi :  o 2, 3r floor, , t  H OAK Lane, Fo tr , Mumbai - 400023
(C N  I  : L65990M 91PLC 4631H19 06 )

A N ANCE SLIPTTE D

      

Name o  he Sha ehol rf t r de

   

:…… …………………………………………………………………..

 

Joi ol r 1nt H de

    

:…… .……………………………………………………………. ……

 

Joi ol r 2nt H de

    

:…… … ………………………………………………………………. .

 

Reg ste ed add ess o  th rehol ri r r  f e Sha de  

 

:…… …… …… .….. …………………………………………………. .

 
   
   

:…… …………………………………………………………………. .

 

Name o  he Prox / R esenta if t y epr t ve  

 

:…… ……………. …………………………………………………….
 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 
Pranjali School Auditorium 155/157 August Kranti Marg, Next to Stephens Church Mumbai -400036 on 
29th September 2015 at 05.00 p.m.

Sig tuna re o  he Sha e H r/Prox …………f t r olde y: ………

 

NOT S  1) Please complete the Folio/ DP ID-Client ID No. and name of the Member/ Proxy, signE  :   
thi  tendan p and hand i ov  dul si d  a  he en rance o  he M ti  Hal .           s At ce Sli  t er, y gne , t t t  f t ee ng l            

2  harehol  rox l r si i  o end he eeti ul g he  y  ) S der/ P y ho de de r ng t  att t m ng sho d brin his/ r cop  of
the nnual Repor  e erence a  he ee i .A t for r f t t m t ng

 

 

DP    ID : Client ID :

 

Folio N   ;;<<<<<<o : <

 

N Sh  o. of  ares :
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Mum iba  - 40 200 3

Name o  he M s)f t ember(
Reg ste ed dd essi r A r
Emai  l - id
Folio No. / Client ID 

I/ being the embe ( o ………… . sh o  he abov ed company hereby appoi   We,  m r s) f ……….. . ares f t e nam  ,  nt 

1
.

Name

 

Address

 

E-mai  Idl

 

Sig tu e na r  

 

or fai ing hil  m

 

2
.

Name

 

Address

 

E-mai  Idl

 

Sig tu e na r  

 

or fai ing hil  m

 

3. Name

 

Address

 

E-mai  Idl

 

Sig tu e na r  

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 23rd Annual General 
Meeting of the company, to be held on the 29th day of September, 2015 At 05.00 p.m. at Pranjali School 
Auditorium 155/157 August Kranti Marg, Next to Stephens Church Mumbai -400036 and at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.
 

R l neso utio
 1 Adoption o  udi ed Fif A t nanci State ents  he 1al m  for t F.Y. 20 4

 
-

 
2015

 2 Re-appoi  o  ntment f Mr. A Kotharinil , w  re i es b rotatho t r  y ion

 3
Re-appointment of Motilal and Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai as 
Statut y udi orsor  A t  

 
4 T appoi  o nt Mr. Shi al M hat  ut

 

as an ndependen  D ector I t ir

 

5 T appoio nt Mr . Sai dra Kuma  Patnilen  r

 

as Indepen ntde

 

D ec orir t

 

6 T oo App int Mrs.

 

Sudarsha  M trana i

 

as an Independ t D ec or en ir t

 

Sig d hi day 201ne t s………….  of…………. 5

 

Sig tu e o  sha ehol r       …na r f r de       : ………………………………..

 

Sig tu e o  p ox hol (s    :na r f r y der )    …………………………………. 

Note : This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed, signed and deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

AFFIX 

R VENUE E

STAMP
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